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Chairman’s Statement

EE®ME

| am pleased to present the annual results of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

Benefited from the gradual upturn in global economy, in
particular Hong Kong and PRC, Symphony Holdings Limited
recorded more than double our profit for the year compared
with 2009, which takes into account a considerable revaluation
gain on investment properties and return on favourable
investment market. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
reached HKD87.9 million, representing an increase of 389% over
the past year. Revenue increased by 9% to HKD1,947.5 million
and gross profit maintained a steady growth of 4% to HKD362.0
million. The results testified our insightful overall business and
investment strategies in the previous years, as well as our striving
to strengthen business efficiency to enhance shareholder value.

In 2010, the branding business of the Group was picking up its
momentum. The improvement in financial performance, the
dedicated management as well as strategic alliance gave the
Board the confidence to the enormous opportunities of branding
and retailing segments.

With the implementation of efficacious restructuring and cost
control measures, the business and operations of Pony and
Haggar improved steadily. During the year, Pony focused on its
licensing business. Currently, Pony reaches 30 countries spreading
over Asia, Europe, North and South Americas. The licensee
network continues to expand. Pony’s Archive footwear collection
received high recognition and strong reputation in the market.
The business of Pony in China continued to perk up by doubling
its turnover compared with last year. The number of points of
sale increased to 180, which are situated in strategic locations
of first and second tier cities in China, in addition to 2 online shops.
During the year, Haggar recorded an increase in revenue by 8%
and a net income of USD12.2 million for the first fime since our
investment in 2005.
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In 2010, the business of Speedo in China noted a significant
increase in annual tfurnover by 45% while gross profit improved
by 28%. This improvement is due to the increase in number of
points of sale and enhanced marketing efficiency. From the time
when Berghaus entered into the PRC market in 2009 summer,
the brand gained its recognition which gave rise to a surge in its
yearly turnover. Helly Hansen, having its first flagship store opened
in Beijing in 2010, was expanded to 6 direct managed stores
during the year, achieving a handsome gross margin of 71%. The
Group continued the expansion of its Mango stores. During the
year, 5 additional Mango stores were opened in strategic
locations in the PRC. The turnover of Mango climbed 51% through
the operation of a total of 7 Mango stores.

Annual turnover of JFTin 2010 surged 446% as compared to 2009.
As correctly perceived by the Group, the operation was
increasingly recognised as a hub for trendy retail fashion in Hong
Kong. Selected popular brands of Shibuya 109 and voguish
Japan accessories landed key cities in the PRC during 2010,
including Shanghai, Tianjin, Chengdu and Shenyang. There are
plans to further expand the number of points of sale nationwide
in China. The Group expects that with the rise of disposable
income and the growing aspiration of the PRC market for stylish
consumer goods, designer products will be favourably
perceived. In the third quarter of 2010, JFT's affiliate successfully
opened its first EDWIN flagship store in Shanghai. EDWIN is
preparing to launch a territory-wide campaign to maximise the
brand’s presence in the PRC market.

In early 2011, Mitsubishi Estates Co., Ltd, one of the pioneers of
outlet mall players in Japan, gave their recognition to our outlet
mall strategy and formed a joint venture with us for the
development, management and operation of the Park Outlet.
Park Outlet is the Group's flagship upscale outlet mall of
international standard which would create unique and world-
class shopping experience for consumers aspiring for premium
lifestyle. Offering an attributable gross floor area of approximately
60,000 square metres, the mall is targeted for completion by 2012.
We believe that the joint venture will benefit Park Outlet through
the unique experience, extensive system and network exchanges
contributed by both the Group and MEC. The joint venture is
strategically significant for the Group as it provides a platform
for the Group's long-term and sustainable growth in the industry.
Foundation work and preliminary leasing works of Park Outlet
are underway.
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®ME

The Group further acquired 2 parcels of land in Shenyang through
public auction in January 2011 for commercial and residential
complex developments. Given that the Group perceives a
continued and enormous development potential in the real
estate market, Symphony continues to explore opportunities and
forge suitable and competent partners to develop and invest in
properties in Hong Kong and PRC.

During the year, footwear manufacturing division continues to
be the major contributor to the Group's operating earnings. The
revenue increased by 10% to HKD1,869.4 million subsequent to
the picking up of momentum at the production lines in Vietnam.
Being affected by the pressure on escalation of salaries in the
PRC and Vietnam, surge of raw materials cost as well as the
appreciation of Renminbi and New Taiwan Dollars, gross margin
slightly dropped by 120 basis points to 17%. Taking advantage of
the favourable operational environment in Vietnam, the Group
expects that meaningful earnings will be generated from 2011
onwards.

Along with steady global economy recovery, Hong Kong and
the Mainland China markets continue to be strong. Despite there
is significant growth in revenue generated in these favourable
markets, the Group faces a number of challenges. Keen
competition on domestic demand in China, along with global
instability and exchange rate fluctuation are the factors boosting
operating cost and pressuring exports. Symphony remains
cautiously optimistic. Nevertheless, the Group continues to
leverage its resources to improve its market presence, profitability
and sustainability. Through consistent business growth and
strategic alliance, we are confident that our shareholders and
investors shall be rewarded by the Group's momentous returns
on its tactical investments.

I would like take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors,
our staff and stakeholders for their continuing contributions and
support in shaping the future of Symphony .

Chan Ting Chuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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During the year, the Group's manufacturing division completed
the first phase of restructuring. Productivity of the production
facilities picked up again and accordingly, revenue of the Group
was HKD1,947,473,000, representing a 9% corresponding growth.

The Group recorded an extraordinary gain of HKD20,491,000,
being the gain on disposal of an available-for-sale investment
which principally engaged in the design and sale of top ladies
fashion footwear in China.

As at 31 December 2010, the investment properties of the
Company were revalued and noted a substantial appreciation.
Accordingly, gain in fair value of investment properties increased
by 176% and deferred tax liabilities increased by 111%.

The performance of the Group's jointly controlled entities
improved and showed a gradual pick-up. Accompanied by
additional capital invested in 2 jointly controlled entities during
the year, interests in jointly controlled entities increased by 61%
to HKD91,217,000.

In light of the current favourable financial market, the Group
has disposed of most of its security and bond investments during
the year. Available-for-sale investments and held-for-trading
investments during the year greatly reduced.

The Group has spent significantly on raw materials to cope with
the production of high-end footwear products and faced
seasonal increase in manufacturing demand. Accordingly,
accounts receivable and inventory, which included work in
progress raw materials, increased by 53% and 64% respectively
as at 31 December 2010. The average collection period was
reduced fo 40 days.

During the year, the Group was offered a secured term loan of
HKD80,000,000, which was financed for property investment
projects and working capital of the Company.

MANUFACTURING AND RETAILING BUSINESS
MARKET INFORMATION

During the year, sales to the United States of America and
Canada comprised 54% (2009: 54%) and orders to other
European countries comprised 25% (2009: 28%) of the total sales
and the remaining 21% (2009: 18%) was shared between Asiqa,
Africa, Australia, Latin America and the Middle East.
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Operation Review

RERE

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had an aggregate number
of 33 production lines, of which 7 are in Panyu, 7 are in
Zhongshan, é are in Fuzhou, and a further 13 are in Vietnam.

STORES NETWORK

The Group had directly managed and franchised stores in the
mainland China for the retail and distribution of 5 globally
renowned brands. Below is a breakdown by brand and store

type:

Speedo Rt E
Pony Pony
Berghaus B
Helly Hansen EFER
Mango TR

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MAINTENANCE AND
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Our extensive experience and working knowledge on the
manufacturing process, production materials and procurement
allows us to work closely with our customers to achieve quality
and efficiency and produce cost-effective products. Our
dynamic brands development team provides their expertise and
foresighted advice fo our customers on the retail and wholesale
markets in mainland China. The maintenance of close
relationship with our customers has built an in-depth
understanding of their needs so that we are capable of
anticipating and resolving their problems expeditiously and
effectively. Our research and development team improves
products design to maximise their comfort, endurance and
functionality, and where necessary, infroduces new technology
to enhance their market appeal. Our value-added contributions
enable us to maintain our long-term partnership with our
customers.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had bank balances and
cash of HKD365,519,000 (2009: HKD399,184,000). The Group was
offered banking facilities amounting to HKD257,500,000 (2009:
HKD236,250,000). During the year, the Group obtained new bank
borrowing in the amount of HKD80,000,000 (2009: Nil). The
borrowing is interest bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus 1.1%. The gearing ratio stood at 18% (2009: 0%), based
on total borrowing over shareholders’ fund. The banking facilities
were secured by corporate guarantees from the Company and
its certain subsidiaries.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2010, the total number of employees of the
Group was approximately 17,000. Employee cost (excluding
directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HKD399,647,000 (2009: HKD358,950,000).

In addition to competitive remuneration packages, discretionary
bonuses and employee share options are awarded to eligible
staff of the Group based on their performance and individual
merits.
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Board of Directors

EEg

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen, aged 63, Chairman (appointed on 9 March
2009)

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen graduated with a Bachelor degree in civil
engineering from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is also a
director of each of Royal Pacific Limited, First Dynamic
International Limited and Well Success, all of which are deemed
or direct substantial shareholders of the Company under the SFO.

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony, aged 59, Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director (appointed on 1 February 2005 and re-elected on
17 June 2010)

Mr. Sze, Sun Sun Tony has over 30 years of experience in
investment and property development in Hong Kong, the
mainland China and the overseas markets. He is also a director
of each of Alexon International Limited, First Dynamic
International Limited and Well Success, all of which are deemed
or direct substantial shareholders of the Company under the SFO.

Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan, aged 63, Deputy Chairman (appointed
on 1 February 2005 and re-elected on 10 June 2009)

Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan joined the Group at its inception in 1990
and is the founder of the manufacturing business of the Group.
Mr. Chang is a substantial shareholder of Well Success, the major
Shareholder. Mr. Chang is also the President of the manufacturing
division of the Group. He has over 30 years of experience and
knowledge in the footwear manufacturing industry.

Mr. Chan Lu Min, aged 56, (appointed on 28 June 2002 and re-
elected on 12 June 2008)

Mr. Chan Lu Min is also an executive director of Yue Yuen, a
company engaged in shoe manufacturing that is listed on the
Exchange. Yue Yuen is deemed as a substantial Shareholder
under the SFO. Mr. Chan graduated from the Chung Hsing
University in Taiwan and possesses 31 years of finance and
accounting experience.
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Ms. Chen Fang-Mei, aged 48, (appointed on 8 July 2009)

Ms. Chen Fang-Mei graduated with a Bachelor degree of
International Business from Soochow University in Taiwan in 1986
and has over 20 years of experience in investment and financial
management. During 2001 to 2004, she was the vice president
and head of underwriting of Citibank Securities (Taiwan) Limited.
Ms. Chen is the spokesperson and vice president of Pou Chen
Corporation (TSE: 9904) since 2004. Pou Chen Corporation is a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and a deemed
substantial Shareholder under SFO. Ms. Chen is also an executive
director of Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited (HKSE:
02368), a company engaged in the manufacturing and trading
of sportswear and garments that is listed on the Exchange.

Dr. Ho Ting Seng, aged 62, (appointed on 7 April 2006 and re-
elected on 17 June 2010)

Dr. Ho Ting Seng graduated from the University of Malaya and
holds both his Master and Doctor of Philosophy degrees from
the University of Pennsylvania, United States of America. He
previously worked as the first Chief Economist of Worldwide
Operations at the Federal Express Corporation. Before joining the
Group, Dr. Ho ran his own consultancy business specialising in
multi-model logistics network design to support direct sourcing
and distribution activities of manufacturer clients in China and
Asia.

Mr. Li | Nan, aged 69, (appointed on 28 June 2002 and re-elected
on 17 June 2010)

Mr. Li I Nan has many years of experience in the footwear business
including sourcing and wholesale operations. He is an executive
director of Yue Yuen, a company engaged in shoes
manufacturing that is listed on the Exchange. Yue Yuen is a
deemed substantial Shareholder under the SFO. Mr. Li holds a
Bachelor and a Master of Arts degrees from National Chengchi
University in Taiwan and a Master of Arts degree from the
University of Southern California.
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Board of Directors
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Mr. Cheng Kar Shing, aged 58, (appointed on 4 June 1997 and
re-elected on 10 June 2009)

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing holds a Master degree in engineering from
the University of California in Los Angeles, United States. Mr.
Cheng has been a director of New World Hotels (Holdings)
Limited since 1984 and New World Development Company
Limited since 1994. New World Development Company Limited
is a company listed on the Exchange (HKSE: 00017). He is also an
executive director of New World China Land Limited, a company
listed on the Exchange (HKSE: 00917) and an independent non-
executive director of King Fook Holdings Limited (HKSE: 00280).

Mr. Feng Lei Ming, aged 53, (appointed on 12 May 2003 and re-
elected on 10 June 2009)

Mr. Feng, Lei Ming, graduated with an MBA in finance from the
University of Memphis, Tennessee, United States of America. Mr.
Feng had around 20 years of experience in the Hong Kong
securities industry and in charge several securities firms and
investment banking division in Hong Kong. He is currently the
Managing Director of Pro-Health (China) Co. Ltd. He was
responsible for sales planning at National Electric Appliance
Corp. and A.C. Nielsen in Taiwan before he started to work in
Hong Kong in 1994.

Mr. Ho Shing Chak, aged 51, (appointed on 30 December 2004
and re-elected on 17 June 2010)

Mr. Ho Shing Chak graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor degree in business administration and holds
a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking University. He
previously worked for a reputable international accounting firm
and is currently running his own business. Mr. Ho is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and is also an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Mr. Huang Shenglan, aged 59, (appointed on 8 July 2009)

Mr. Huang Shenglan holds a diploma in Arts from Huazhong
Normal University, a master degree in International Economics
from Huadong Normal University and a certificate in International
Economic Law in Xiamen University. He also took the Advanced
Management Programme from the Business School of Harvard
University, United States of America. Mr. Huang has over 20 years
of experience in the banking and corporate financing industry.
He had been appointed the executive director of Everbright
Bank of China, Beijing and China Everbright Technology Limited
(currently China Haidian Holdings Limited) (HKSE: 00256). Mr.
Huang has been serving as the Deputy General Manager of ICBC
International Holdings Limited in Hong Kong since 2005. He has
also been an independent non-executive director of each of
Burwell Holdings Limited (HKSE: 00024) since 2004 and China
LotSynergy Holdings Limited (HKSE: 08161) since 2002, both
companies are listed on the Exchange. Since 2003, Mr. Huang
has also been appointed an independent director of Chongqging
Road & Bridge Co. Ltd. (SSE: 600106), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are manufacturing and trading of
footwear, tfrading, retailing and distribution of footwear, apparel,
swimming wear and accessories, property investment and
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities are set out in Notes 37 and 16 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 30 to 31 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared or paid during the year. The
Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.015 per Share to Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 8 June
2011. The total amount of final dividend payable is approximately
HKD26,161,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group's leasehold land and buildings and freehold land were
revalued at 31 December 2010. The revaluation resulted in a
surplus of approximately HKD25,754,000 which was credited
directly to the properties revaluation reserve.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 December 2010, the Group's investment properties were
fair valued by an independent firm of professional property
valuers on an open market value basis. The net increase in fair
value of approximately HKD159,224,000 was credited directly to
profit or loss.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 December 2010 were as follows:

Share premium i 17 @ B
Contributed surplus BEHRR
Accumulated profits B 155 F)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in a company's contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a disfribution out of
conftributed surplus and share premium if:

(a) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable fo
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assefs of the company would
thereby be less than the aggregate of ifs liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounfts.
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (Chairman)

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chan Lu Min

Ms. Chen Fang Mei

Dr. Ho Ting Seng

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li I Nan

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Ho Shing Chak

Mr. Huang Shenglan

In accordance with the Bye-laws, Mr. Chan Lu Min, Mr. Chan
Ting Chuen, Ms. Chen Fang Mei and Mr. Huang Shenglan retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Particulars of the 2001 Scheme are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group has no

share option being granted, lapsed or cancelled pursuant to
the share option scheme adopted on 22 October 2001.

Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at

31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the

Directors and the chief executives and their associates of the
Company in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Exchange pursuant to the Code, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS

Ordinary Shares:
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MerEl - RRBBLIA LT RATDNEEETESR
ZHRAETABAA DR R P 72010512
AS1A » ARBEERTETHAB KA SRR
ATRARRREBE QBN - RGO R
BEFOEREIORBOEFIMT -

RE
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Percentage

of the

Number of ordinary Shares issued share

h‘fl_dﬂgy Total capital of

FRERTLERNE number of  the Company

beneficial controlled ordinary EERDT

Director Notes owner corporation Shares 2817

= fit 5t FHA ERbE ZEREH REEDL

Chan Ting Chuen R 1,2 5,000,000 851,685,958 856,685,958 49.1%

Chang Tsung Yuan SR B 4 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 0.3%

Sze Sun Sun Tony i 1,3 - 851,687,958 851,687,958 48.8%
Notes: Hiat -

1.

Well Success was directly interested in 851,685,958 Shares. First
Dynamic International Limited held more than one-third of the
issued share capital of Well Success. Each of Royal Pacific Limited
and Alexon International Limited held more than one-third of the
issued share capital of First Dynamic International Limited.
Accordingly, First Dynamic Infernational Limited, Royal Pacific
Limited and Alexon International Limited were deemed to be
interested in 851,685,958 Shares.

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen had a direct interest in 5,000,000 Shares. Royal
Pacific Limited was wholly-owned by TC Chan Family Holdings
Limited, which in turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Chan. Accordingly,
Mr. Chan was or deemed to be interested in 856,685,958 Shares.

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony was interested in the entire issued share capital
of Alexon International Limited and was therefore deemed to be
interested in 851,685,958 Shares.

Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan was directly interested in 6,000,000 Shares.
He was also a substantial shareholder of Well Success, in which he
held 20% of its issued share capital.

1. R20104612A31H + Well SuccessE# 5 H
851,685,958 %17  First Dynamic International
Limited# 8 Well Successifl =9 — B 31T -
Royal Pacific Limited 2 Alexon International
Limited % 53 A& First Dynamic International
Limited#@ =5 — 2 #1TRA o Bt » First
Dynamic International Limited + Royal Pacific
Limited 2 Alexon International Limited 9148 &
#75851,685,958 A& 15 ©

2. PR BZ ) 1| ¢ 4= B #% #5 4 5,000,000/% f% 15 = Royal
Pacific Limitedl R &£ 2 E#HAMTC Chan
Family Holdings Limited&2 & A& - Ft - Bk
AR B 856,685,958 f% 15 ©

3. 63731 ¢ A 15 A Alexon International Limited
ZEHEBITRAER - BIIR AFEE851,685,958

BB An o
4. SRES N S5 A2 B 5 6,000,0000% 8% 7 - TR AWell

Successt EZEH - #H B Well Successt 31T
MR 20% M %5 -

FEEEBRAT 2010 BFHE

15



Directors’ Report

EE®RE

Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Options”,
none of the Directors, chief executives nor their associates of
the Company had any interest or short position in any Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2010.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party fo any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial Shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31 December 2010, the following shareholders had noftified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company.

1 é Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report
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(1)

LONG POSITIONS

Ordinary shares

Shareholder
[

Well Success

First Dynamic International Limited

Royal Pacific Limited

TC Chan Family Holdings Limited

Chan Ting Chuen
REI

Ng Shuk Fong
R

Alexon International Limited

Sze Sun Sun Tony

ikl

Lau Yuk Wah
3x#

(M
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EERS

Number of issued ordinary Shares

BRTROHE
Direct Deemed Total

Capacity interests interests interests

ER HEER REAREER BER

Beneficial owner 851,685,958 - 851,685,958

REA

Interest of controlled - 851,685,958 851,685,958
corporation

RERE

Interest of controlled - 851,685,958 851,685,958
corporation

RERE

Interest of controlled - 851,685,958 851,685,958
corporation

RERE

Beneficial owner, and interest 5,000,000 851,685,958 856,685,958
of controlled corporation

RRARZEOE

Spouse and beneficiary - 856,685,958 856,685,958
of frust

[

Interest of controlled - 851,685,958 851,685,958
corporation

RERE

Beneficial owner - 851,685,958 851,685,958

REA

Spouse - 851,685,958 851,685,958

[

Percentage in
the issued
share capital

of the Company
BARA
BRTRE
Btk

48.8%

48.8%

48.8%

48.8%

49.1%

49.1%

48.8%

48.8%

48.8%
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(1) LONG POSITIONS (CONTINUED)

Ordinary Shares (continued)

Shareholder Notes Capacity
[ fia ER
Frensham 4 Beneficial owner and inferest

of controlled corporation
RRARZHERE

Interest of controlled
corporation
RERE

Pou Yuen Industrial (Holdings) Limited 4
EnI%(5E)ERAA

Interest of controlled
corporation

RELE

Yue Yuen Industrial Limited 4
BRI£ARAH

Interest of controlled
corporation

RELE

Pou Hing Industrial Company Limited 4

(1 E=2 @
EERD (&)

Percentage in

Yue Yuen
#

Wealthplus Holdings Limited

Pou Chen Corporation
ERI%(5E)ERAA

Shah Capital Management

Interest of controlled
corporation

RELE

Interest of controlled
corporation

RELE

Interest of controlled
corporation

RELE

Beneficial owner
RHEA

Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report

the issued

Number of issued ordinary Shares share capital
ERTRGHE of the Company

Direct Deemed Total ERAF
interests interests interests BRTRE
HEER REAREER BEs Bk
83,999,430 851,685,958 935,685,388 53.7%
- 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.7%

- 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.7%

- 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.7%

- 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.7%

- 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.7%

- 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.7%

- 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.7%
239,828,500 - 239,828,500 13.8%



(1)

LONG POSITIONS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2010, Well Success was directly interested
in 851,685,958 Shares. First Dynamic International Limited held
more than one-third of the issued share capital of Well
Success. Each of Royal Pacific Limited and Alexon
International Limited held more than one-third of the issued
share capital of First Dynamic International Limited.
Accordingly, First Dynamic International Limited, Royal
Pacific Limited and Alexon International Limited were
deemed to be inferested in 851,685,958 shares of the
Company.

Ms. Ng Shuk Fong is the wife of Mr. Chan Ting Chuen, a
Director. Royal Pacific Limited is wholly-owned by TC Chan
Family Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr.
Chan. As at 31 December 2010, Royal Pacific Limited was
deemed to be interested in 851,685,958 Shares (see Note 1),
therefore both Mr. Chan and Ms. Ng were deemed to be
interested in 851,685,958 Shares. Furthermore, Mr. Chan was
directly interested in 5,000,000 Shares. Accordingly, Ms. Ng
was deemed to be interested in a fotal of 856,685,958 Shares.

Ms. Lau Yuk Wah is the wife of Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony, a Director.
As at 31 December 2010, Mr. Sze was interested in the entire
issued share capital of Alexon International Limited, therefore
he was deemed to be interested in 851,685,958 shares of
the Company (see Note 1). Accordingly, Ms. Lau was
deemed to be interested in a total of 851,685,958 shares of
the Company.

Frensham was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou Yuen
Industrial (Holdings) Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Yue Yuen Industrial Limited. Yue Yuen Industrial
Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou Hing Industrial
Company Limited which in turn was a whollyowned
subsidiary of Yue Yuen. Wealthplus Holdings Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Pou Chen Corporation, held over one-
third of the entire issued share capital of Yue Yuen. As at 31
December 2010, Frensham Investments Limited held more
than one-third of the issued share capital of Well Success
and was therefore deemed to be intferested in 851,685,958
Shares (see note 1). In addition, Frensham Investments
Limited had a direct interest in 83,999,430 Shares.
Accordingly, all of Frensham, Pou Yuen Industrial (Holdings)
Limited, Yue Yuen Industrial Limited, Pou Hing Industrial
Company Limited, Yue Yuen, Wealthplus Holdings Limited
and Pou Chen Corporation were or deemed to be interested
in 935,685,388 Shares.

(1)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)
(2) SHORT POSITIONS

The Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2010.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales aftributable to the Group's
largest and top five customers were approximately 36% and 91%
of the Group's total sales, respectively.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's
total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders which,
to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interests in the share
capital of any of the five largest customers of the Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling approximately HKD107,000 (2009: HKD73,000).
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's employee emolument policy is set up by the Board
on the basis of the merit, qualification and competence of the
Group's employees.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board, as
authorised by the Shareholders at annual general meetings,
having regard to the operating results of the Company, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was set up in December 2005,
advising the Board on the emoluments of the Directors and senior
management. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees,
details of the scheme are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws,
or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2010.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to
27 of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
appoint the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Ting Chuen
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERBE

Symphony Holdings Limited recognises the value and importance
of achieving high standard of corporate governance, aiming at
providing sufficient transparency, quality of disclosure as well as
effective risk control to investors.

The Company has adopted and complied with the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2010, only with
deviations from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election.
Directors (including non-executive Directors) were not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with Bye-
law 87 of the Bye-laws. Each Director is effectively appointed
under an average term of three years.

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance long-
term shareholders’ value. It focuses on the Group's overall
strategic policy, monitors performance and offers proper
supervision for effective management. As at 31 December 2010,
the Board consisted of eleven Directors (including the Chairman
of the Board), amongst which six are executive Directors and
five are Non-executive Directors of whom four are independent.

The posts of Chairman and Managing Director (being defined
as Chief Executive Officer in the CG Code) are held separately
by Mr. Chan Ting Chuen and Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony respectively.
The Chairman of the Board provides leadership and
management of the Board. On the other hand, the Managing
Director focuses on managing the day-to-day operation of the
business of the Group. This segregation of roles ensures the
reinforcement of their independence, accountability and
responsibility.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategy and managing day-to-day
administration and operations of the Group's business to the
Managing Director and the senior management. While allowing
management with substantial autonomy to run and to develop
the business, the delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board.
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The INEDs came from diverse business and professional
backgrounds, bringing in valuable expertise and experience that
promotes the best interests of the Group and its Shareholders.
The Company has received, from each INED, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all INEDs are independent.

All Directors have full, timely and direct access to the services
and advice from the company secretary of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of the
following members:

Executive Director

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (Chairman)

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (Deputy Chairman & Managing Director)
Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chan Lu Min

Ms. Chen Fang Mei

Dr. Ho Ting Seng

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li | Nan

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Ho Shing Chak

Mr. Huang Shenglan

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for the purpose of advising the Board
on and reviewing the remuneration policy and its structure for
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee assesses performance and approves the terms of
the service conftracts (if any) of executive Directors.

Members of Remuneration Committee
Mr. Feng Lei Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Ho Shing Chak
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ERERRS

Remuneration package is performance-based and the
recommended remuneration package comprises salaries,
bonuses and share incentive scheme. During the year under
review, the Remuneration Committee considered that the
packages of the executive Directors were fair and reasonable,
taking into account business performance, market practices and
competitive market conditions. Non-executive Directors are
compensated with the aim to fairly represent their efforts and
time dedicated to the Board.

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) was
established with specific written terms of reference. The Audit
Committee oversees the audit process and provides an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process and the internal control.

Members of Audit Committee
Mr. Ho Shing Chak (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Li | Nan

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its responsibilities. For the year ended 31 December
2010, the Audit Committee reviewed with external auditor,
internal auditors and senior management the annual results of
the Group as well as the accounting principles and practices
being adopted, internal control and financial reporting matters.
Our Financial Controller, senior management, internal auditors
and the external auditors attended the meetings to respond to
any queries raised by the Audit Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the year under review, the Board conducted 11 meetings.
Management provided appropriate and sufficient information
to the Directors and Board Committees members in a timely
manner to keep them abreast of the latest developments of the
Company to discharge their responsibilities. The attendance of
individual members of the Board and other Board Committees
meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2010 is
set out in the table below:

Directors

BE

Executive Directors HITES
Chan Ting Chuen PR Bz )|

Sze Sun Sun Tony 6 3T ¥
Chang Tsung Yuan 5% B
Chan Lu Min ke
Chen Fang Mei PR 53

Ho Ting Seng o] #
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Li | Nan FHS
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Cheng Kar Shing B K
Feng Lei Ming RS B BA

Ho Shing Chak fa] B2
Huang Shenglan =HE

Minutes of the Board meetings and the Board Committees
meetings have been recorded in sufficient detail. Draft and final
versions of minutes of the Board and the Board Committees are
sent fo all Directors or Committees members for comments and
records within a reasonable time after the meeting.

The Company has not established a nominaftion committee but
shall regularly review and consider whether such committee is
required. All appointments, resignations and removals of Directors
and the succession plan are subject to the approval of the Board.
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Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee
EEg EREEE FHENZES
11/11 — —
11/11 — —
3/11 — —
1/11 — —
2/11 — —
10/11 — —
2/11 2/2 —
2/11 2/2 1/2
1/11 1/2 1/2
1/11 2/2 1/2
1/11 — —

EFeMEZEENEHCARNFALE g%
LHEHNERRRERAIHE R SRR NS IR
NEARFFBEEENEZEGKNEFMN TR &kF

# -

ARRIERIIREEES @ B ERRSTRE
BREFERIZEER - FIAESENET B
THEBEENHBETARE  HARESSH
fE -

FEEEBRAT 2010 BFHE



Corporate Governance Report

ERERRS

Under the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors (including INEDs)
must retire, becoming eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting. This year, Mr. Chan Lu Min, Mr. Chan Ting Chuen,
Ms. Chen Fang Mei and Mr. Huang Shenglan shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and all being eligible to
offer themselves for re-election. Details of their biography are
set out in the circular to Shareholders.

As at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any members of the Group that
will not expire or is not determinable by the employer within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A summary of remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, for audit services
and non-audit services for the financial years ended
31 December 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

Nature of services R E
Audit services EET AR
Other services H A AR 75

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, each of them confirmed his compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2010 which give a true and fair view of the state of
financial affairs of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

Directors have reviewed the soundness, adequacy and
application of accounting, financial and other controls and
promoting effective control in the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the significance of maintaining an effective
two-way communication with its stakeholders. Designated
management meets with research analysts and institutional
investors on an on-going basis and provides them with the latest
and comprehensive information about the corporate
developments of the Group. In addition, the Company utilises
its website (www.symphonyholdings.com) as a channel to
provide updated information in a timely manner in order to
strengthen the communication with its stakeholders.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting in the
following manner:

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained sufficient public float at over 40%
throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
& 3 B BYAT R B

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audifed the consolidated financial statements of
Symphony Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 30 fo
128 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such intfernal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely fo you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Audifing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Cerfified Public Accountfants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obfain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2010 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong ¢ 29 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEERER

For the year ended 31 December
EZ12H31 HILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Other expenses

Increase in fair value of
investment properties

Gain on disposal of available-for-
sale investments

Gain on fair value changes
of held-for-tfrading investments

Share of results of jointly
controlled entities

Profit before tax
Taxation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Surplus arising on reclassification
from prepaid lease payments
to investment properties
Deferred tax on surplus arising
on reclassification from prepaid
lease payments fo investment
properties
Surplus arising on revaluation
of properties
Deferred tax liability arising
on revaluation of properties
Fair value gain on available-for-
sale investments
Reclassification adjustment
to profit or loss upon disposal
of available-for-sale investments
Exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign
operations
Share of other comprehensive
income of jointly confrolled
entities
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2010 2009
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
i & THET FHET
(Restated)
(E751)
4 1,947,473 1,784,907
(1,585,502) (1,437.,838)
361,971 347,069
23,320 34,425
(171,081) (149,114)
(220,967) (196,392)
5 (497) -
(4,765) (7,430)
159,224 57,750
20,491 2
64 716
(41,394) (58,498)
126,366 28,528
6 (38,770) (10,785)
7 87,596 17,743
- 203
- (50)
25,754 45,024
(4,238) (8,283)
1,755 6,412
(2,103) (2)
15,581 (2,968)
3,021 5,320




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income

for the year (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share

— Basic (HK cents)

— Diluted (HK cents)

FEME A A -
RRARER A
SRR M

fElhr e km g

ZA/NSIET DN
JEYE R HE 2R

BEAR GBI

BEE (BL)

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December
HEI12A31 HIFFE

2010 2009

Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
i & THET FHEIT
(Restated)

(&E5)

39,770 45,656

127,366 63,399

87,861 17,963
(265) (220)

87,596 17,743

126,835 63,610
531 (2171)

127,366 63,399

10

5.04 1.03

N/ATE A 1.03
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B IR R 3R

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Prepaid lease payments
Inferests in joinfly confrolled entifies
Advance to jointly controlled entities
Available-for-sale investments
Deferred tax assets
Tax recoverable
Club debentures

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities
Trade and other receivables
Prepaid lease payments
Held-for-trading investments
Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Amounts due fo jointly contfrolled entities
Secured bank loans
Tax payable

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The financial statements on pages 30 to 128 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board on 29 March 2011 and are

signed on its behalf by:
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Notes

18
16
19
13
20
21

22
16
24

23

25

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TER TEL FEL
(Restated) (Restated)

(Z711) (Z71)

331,097 318,067 350,236
512,962 331,040 112,450
19,054 18,860 21,268
91,217 56,778 78,272
171,388 171,110 127,749
6,246 60,011 54,366
12,264 13,127 10,085
23214 17,214 9,714
2,003 2,003 2,003
1,169,447 988,210 766,143
281,499 171,254 269,148
23,693 25,664 50,692
345,947 217,808 459,061
518 499 516

- 321 4,055

365,519 399,184 280,963
1,017,176 814,730 1,064,435
451,064 311,305 395,027
12,577 17,650 28,006
80,000 - -
55,483 54,969 55,641
599,124 383,924 478,674
418,052 430,806 585,761
1,587,499 1,419,016 1,351,904
71,517 36,781 15,628
1,509,982 1,382,235 1,336,276
436,011 436,011 436,011
972,219 913,604 867,434
1,408,230 1,349,615 1,303,445
101,752 32,620 32,831
1,509,982 1,382,235 1,336,276
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2010

HEI12831 AIEHE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAEREAAER
Properties  Investments Non-
revaluation  revaluation Share controlling
Share Share reserve reserve  Translation opfions Accumulated inferests
capital  premivm  YEEE  REER reserve reserve profits Total F320 Total

Bx  R#ER 1] B ELGE BREEE e it R it
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'00D  HKD'0O  HKD'000  HKD'0OD  HKD'00  HKD'000  HKD'00D  HKD'000
T T TEL TER TER TET TET TET T T

THE GROUP K5E
At T January 2009, as originally stated RN0F1AIE - B 436011 364,638 14,666 (5,956) 60,023 14,137 387854 1271373 32831 1,304204

Effect of changes in accounting policies & HIEEENFE 35,732 - (3,660) 32,072 32072
A1 January 2009, as restated RA9E1A18 + EJ 436,011 364,638 50,398 (5.95¢) 60,023 14137 384194 1,303,445 32831 1,336,276
Profit for the year FERT - - - - - - 17963 17963 (220) 17,743
Surplus arising on reclassification ENARRENAETEA

from prepaid lease payments RENEHEL RS

fo investment properties - - 203 - - - - 203 - 203
Deferred fox on surplus on reclassification  EXAERMNEENEA

from prepoid lease payments RENEEEIRBH

to investment properties BERE - - (50) - - - - (50) - 50)
Surplus arising on revaluation of properties NFEREES 2B - - 45,024 - - - - 45024 - 45,024
Deferred tox liability arising NEEREELZ

on revaluation of properties EEREAE - - 8,283) - - - - (8,283) - 8,283)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale TREERE

investments ATEEEM - - - 6,412 - - - 6,412 - 6,412
Reclassification adjustment to profit ENDRLETLEERE

or loss upon disposal RERNEE

of available-for-sale investments - - - 12) - - - 2) - 2)
Exchange differences arising BEBAELN

on franslation of foreign operations EifEEE - - - - (2977) - - (2977) 9 (2968
Share of other comprehensive income  E£RZ5IEE

of jointly controlled enfities Ehgaks - - - - 5320 - - 5320 - 5320
Other comprehensive income FEERGRMARES

and expense for the year - - 36,894 6,410 2,343 - - 45,647 9 45,656
Total comprehensive income FERANRREE

and expense for the year - - 36,894 6,410 2,343 - 17,963 63,610 [21) 63,399
Lapse of share options BREXT - - - - - (14,137) 14137 - - -
Dividends paid (Nofe 9) BfRE (#9) - - - - - - (40) (17.440) - (17440)
At 31 December 2009, os restated R009E12A318 « 5| 436,011 364,638 87,292 454 62,366 - 398854 1,349,615 32620 1,382,235
Profit for the year ERRA - - - - - - 87,861 87,861 265 87,596
Surplus orising on revaluation of properties NXEREELZ A% - - 25,754 - - - - 25,754 - 25,754
Deferred tox liability arising EENEEENER

on revaluation of properties REaE - - (4,238) - - - - (4,238) - 4239)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AREERES

investments ATEEEN - - - 1,758 - - - 1,755 - 1,758
Reclassification adjustment fo profit orloss  EABHET

upon disposal of available-for-sale BERERERNAR

investments - - - (2,103) - - - (2,103) - (2,103)
Exchange differences arising B EBHELH

on translation of foreign operations EXfEEE - - 844 - 13941 - - 14,785 796 15,581
Share of other comprehensive income (S AR EHEE

of jointly confrolled entifies e ks - - - - 3021 - - 3,021 - 3,021
Other comprehensive income EEERFANARAR

and expense for the year - - 22,360 (348) 16,962 - - 38974 796 39,770
Total comprehensive income FERARARR L%

and expense for the year - - 22,360 (348) 16,962 - 87,861 126,835 531 127,366
Acquisition of addifional interest WE-HERAEIMER

in a subsidiory - - - - - - 2009 2209 (6155 [23946)
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary — HE-HBARHHER - - - - - - [7758)  (47.758) 94,756 47,000
Dividends paid (Nofe 9) BRIRE (39) - - - - - - (22673 (22673 - (22,673
At 31 December 2010 R2010£124318 436,011 364,638 109,652 106 79,328 - 418,495 1,408,230 101,752 1,509,982
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December

#HZ12A31 HIFFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Share of results of jointly
controlled entities
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment
property
Gain on disposal of available-
for-sale investments
Increase in fair value
of investment properties
Reversal of allowance for bad
and doubtful debts
Allowance for inventories, net

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Decrease in amounts due from
jointly controlled entities

(Increase) decrease in trade
and other receivables

Decrease in held-for-trading
investments

Increase (decrease) in trade
and other payables

Cash (used in) generated from
operations

Purchase of tax reserve
certificates

Overseas tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHERT FHET
(Restated)

(&E51)

126,366 28,528
(7.865) (10,126)
497 -
41,394 58,498
41,377 43,038
518 526
1,387 3,592
- (30)
(20,491) (2)
(159,224) (57,750)
(810) (440)
6,558 8,498
29,707 74,332
(116,803) 89,396
1,971 25,028
(126,683) 231,474
321 3,734
134,641 (84,697)
(76,84¢4) 339,267
(6,000) (7.500)
(1,14¢6) (1,851)
153 166
(83,839) 330,082




INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in jointly controlled
enftities
Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of investment properties

Proceeds from disposal

of available-for-sale investments

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Advance to a jointly controlled
entity
Dividends received from a jointly
conftrolled entity
Proceeds from disposal
of subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal
of an investment property

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans raised
Proceeds from disposal

of partial interests in a subsidiary

Acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary

Dividends paid

Repayment to jointly controlled
entities

Interest paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BROUGHT FORWARD

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CARRIED FORWARD,
REPRESENTED BY BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December
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2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHERT FHET
(Restated)

(&E71)
(72,812) (53,625)
(22,218) (19,249)
(17,551) (117,027)
73,908 767
7,865 10,126
288 5,751
- (43,361)

- 21,941

- 9,000

- 2,530
(30,520) (183,147)
80,000 -
47,000 -
(23,9448) -
(22,673) (17,440)
(5,073) (10,35¢)
(497) -
74,811 (27,796)
(39,548) 119,139
399.184 280,963
5,883 (918)
365,519 399,184
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

Symphony Holdings Limited was incorporated in Bermuda L EBERARRBREFMKL AER
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares REREERR  HERMOREBEH A L
are listed on the Exchange. The address of the registered e RRAFEMBFEE AClarendon
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
Bermuda and the principal place of business of the HM11, Bermuda * HEZE& X2 AT S
Company is on the 10th Floor of Island Place Tower, 510 IEAREES10RBERNEIOE -

King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the Company is United States RARIMERERE AETT - ARAREIRE
dollars. The consolidated financial statements are BT BHERNABIRE - KNREMBR
presented in Hong Kong dollars for the convenience of the KUABTTEY -

Shareholders, as the Company is listed in the Exchange.

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and AEBNTEEHAREREMRERES
trading of footwear, trading, retailing and distribution HE - RE  PXRERREGZE -BS
of footwear, apparel, swimming wear and accessories, TERDHE  RERFEYE  TZEMEBR
property investment and holding. The principal activities AR EBEBC EARKI 37 -

of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year , the Group has applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the
HKICPA.

HKFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-based
(Amendments) Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (as revised
in 2008)

Business Combinations

HKAS 27 (as revised Consolidated and Separate
in 2008) Financial Statements

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged ltems

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part
of Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2008
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

HK —Int 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
effect on the amounts report in these consolidated
financial statements and/or disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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HONG KONG INTERPRETATION 5 PRESENTATION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CLASSIFICATION BY THE
BORROWER OF A TERM LOAN THAT CONTAINS A
REPAYMENT ON DEMAND CLAUSE (“HK - INT 5”)

HK-Int 5 clarifies that term loans that include a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loans at
any time (“repayment on demand clause”) should be
classified by the borrower as current liabilities. The Group
has applied HK-Int 5 for the first time in the current year.
HK-Int 5 requires retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK-Int
5, the Group has changed its accounting policy on
classification of term loans with a repayment on demand
clause. In the past, the classification of such term loans
were determined based on the agreed scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. Under
HK-Int 5, term loans with a repayment on demand clause
are classified as current liabilities.

As at 31 December 2010, bank loans (that are repayable
more than one year after the end of the reporting period
but contain a repayment on demand clause) with the
aggregate carrying amount of HKD60,000,000 have been
classified as current liabilities. The application of HK-Int 5
has had no impact on the reported profit or loss for the
current and prior years.

Such term loans have been presented in the earliest time
band in the maturity analysis for financial liabilities (see note
24 for details).

Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HKAS 27 (AS REVISED IN 2008) CONSOLIDATED AND
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The application of HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) has resulted
in changes in the Group's accounting policies for changes
in ownership interests in subsidiaries of the Group.

Specifically, the revised standard has affected the Group's
accounting policies regarding changes in the Group's
ownership interests in its subsidiaries that do not result in
loss of control. In prior years, in the absence of specific
requirements in HKFRSs, increases in interests in existing
subsidiaries were measured at the aggregate of carrying
amounts of identified assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries
and any excess of consideration over the net assets
acquired are accounted for as goodwill. Any excess of the
net assets acquired over the consideration is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Under HKAS 27 (as revised in
2008), all such increases or decreases are dealt with in
equity, with no impact on goodwill or profit or loss.

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a
tfransaction, event or other circumstance, the revised
standard requires the Group to derecognise all assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests at their carrying
amounts and to recognise the fair value of the
consideration received. Any retained interest in the former
subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at the date control
is lost. The resulting difference is recognised as a gain or
loss in profit or loss.

These changes have been applied prospectively from
1 January 2010 in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions.

The application of the revised standard has affected the
accounting for the Group's disposal of 25% effective
interest in Rivergold International Limited in the current year
(see Note 33(c)). The change in policy has resulted in the
difference of HKD47,756,000 between the consideration
received of HKD47,000,000 and the non-controlling interests
recognised of HKD94,756,000 being recognised directly in
equity, instead of in profit or loss.
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HKAS 27 (AS REVISED IN 2008) CONSOLIDATED AND
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Group acquired 20% additional interest in
Nice Well Holdings Limited in the current year. The change
in policy has resulted in the difference of HKD2,209,000
between the consideration paid of HKD23,946,000 and the
non-controlling interests derecognised of HKD26,155,000
being recognised directly in equity, instead of in profit or
loss.

Therefore, the change in accounting policy for partial
disposal and step acquisition has resulted in an increase in
the profit for the year of HKD47,756,000 and a decrease in
the profit for the year of HKD2,209,000 respectively. The
cash consideration received and paid in the current year
of HKD47,000,000 and HKD23,946,000 for the partial disposal
and step acquisition respectively has been included in cash
flows from and used in financing activities respectively.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 17 LEASES

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17
“Leases” has been amended in relation to the classification
of leasehold land. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, the
Group was required to classify leasehold land as operating
leases and to present leasehold land as prepaid lease
payments in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The amendments to HKAS 17 have removed such
a requirement. The amendments require that the
classification of leasehold land should be based on the
general principles set out in HKAS 17, that is, whether or
not substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset have been transferred to the
lessee.

Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the
classification of unexpired leasehold land as at 1 January
2010 based on information that existed at the inception of
the leases. Leasehold land that qualifies for finance lease
classification has been reclassified from prepaid lease
payments to property, plant and equipment carrying at
fair value retrospectively. This resulted in prepaid lease
payments with the carrying amounts of HKD29,720,000,
HKD20,295,000 and HKD19,745,000 as at 1 January 2009,
31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 respectively
being reclassified to property, plant and equipment.

The application of the amendments to HKAS 17 has resulted
in a decrease in the profit of HKD1,464,000 and
HKD1,045,000 for the years ended 2010 and 2009
respectively and an increase in the other comprehensive
income of HKD21,552,000 and HKD15,735,000 for the years
ended 2010 and 2009 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE ABOVE CHANGES IN GELREMBRESENTE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The effects of changes in accounting policies described Tl e RS RHAFERATFESE
above on the results for the current and prior year by line HEMZEMT -

items are as follows:

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FHEIT
Decrease in loss on HE—HEBA R M EERN
partial disposal of a subsidiary R =V 47,756 -
Decrease in gain on E—K B AR EREN
partial acquisition of a subsidiary W sk (2,209) -
Increase in depreciation of property, W - BB RERETEEMN
plant and equipment (2,014) (1,692)
Decrease in amortisation BEETBRAZMENEE
of prepaid lease payments included TRIE E SH R
in administrative expenses 550 647
Increase (decrease) in profit for the year & 3% F1& in0 Ori4) 44,083 (1,045)
Increase in surplus arising on revaluation & i ¥ 2 B & 4 &9 22 K48 AN
of properties 25,811 18,510
Increase in deferred tax liability arising EHMEMEENIELERE
on revaluation of properties BEE M (4,259) (2,775)
Increase in other comprehensive income  H 4R 4 U A8 0 21,552 15,735
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE ABOVE CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The effects of the above changes in accounting policies
on the financial positions of the Group as at 1 January 2009

and 31 December 2009 is as follows:

% BERRE
BREEE
ERHBAR

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Deferred tax liabilities

Total effects on net assets HEEFEY2EE

NXEREE
ZEEN

Properties revaluation reserve
Accumulated profifs

Total effects on equity HRANE 22

FELRBTBRRBENRE (B

bt AT R B B AR BN 2009F 1 A1
H 2009412831 B 2 Bk e 22 an

T~
As at As at
1.1.2009 Asat  31.12.2009 As at
(originally 1.1.2009  (originally 31.12.2009
stated) (restated) stated) (restated)
71.1.2009 Adjustments  71.1.2009 ##31.12.2009 Adjustments 1431.12.2009
(R51) Eil (E51) (R351) #E (B3
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TR TER TER TEL TEL
282,741 67,495 350,236 242,532 75,535 318,067
51,504 (29.720) 21,784 39,654 (20,295) 19,359
(9.925) (5,703) (15,628) (28,303) (8,478) (36,781)
324,320 32,072 356,392 253,883 46,762 300,645
14,666 35,732 50,398 35,825 51,467 87,292
387,854 (3,660) 384,194 403,559 (4,708) 398,854
402,520 32,072 434,592 439,384 46,762 486,146

The effects of the above changes in accounting policies
on the Group's basic and diluted earnings per share for

the current and prior year are as follows:

IMPACT ON BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Figures before adjustments

Adjustments arising from changes
in the Group's accounting policies
in relation to:
- changes in ownership interests
in subsidiaries
- reclassification of leasehold land

Figures after adjustments

TR BE

BERAREEEFTHRRER
FRESRFE -

it EFREREEEAREFE R BEFEOAR
SEEARKEESRANNTZENT

EXREHEERENNZE

~ RHBAREERRNEE

—EFoEREELH

s

AR EE

2010 2009

HK cents HK cents
B4 &L

2.51 1.09

2.61 -
(0.08) (0.06)
5.04 1.03
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010!

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets®
HKAS 24 (as revised Related Party Disclosures®
in 2009)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendments) Funding Requirementé
HK(IFRIC) = Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
or 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 July 2011.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010.

44 Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

“HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments” (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. “HKFRS 9 — Financial
Instruments” (as revised in November 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

. Under "HKFRS 9", all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of "HKAS 39 - Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods.

. In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Specifically, under
“HKFRS 9", for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the presentation of the effects of changes in
the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Currently,
under “"HKAS 39", the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is presented in
profit or loss.

“HKFRS 9" is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Directors anticipate that “HKFRS 9" that will be adopted in
the Group's consolidated financial statements for financial
year ending 31 December 2013 and that the application
of HKFRS 9 will not have a significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities.

The amendments to “HKAS 12" titled “Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets” mainly deal with the
measurement of deferred tax for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model in accordance
with “HKAS 40 Investment Property”. Based on the
amendments, for the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment properties
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of the investment properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain
circumstances. The Directors anticipate that the
application of the amendments to “HKAS 12" may have
significant impact on deferred tax recognised for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model. The Group's investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model will be presumed to
be recovered through sale for the purpose of measuring
deferred taxation in respect of such properties. This will
result in prior years' deferred tax liabilities being decreased,
with the corresponding adjustment being recognised in
accumulated profits.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-conftrolling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 January 2010,
losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess
of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’'s equity
were allocated against the interests of the Group except
to the extent that the non-controlling interests had a
binding obligation and were able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.
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BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1 January 2010

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as
if the Company had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under “HKAS 39 — Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated in
the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with
goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being recognised
where appropriate. For decreases in interests in subsidiaries,
regardless of whether the disposals would result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries, the difference
between the consideration received and the adjustment
to the non-controlling interests was recognised in profit or
loss.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinations that took place on or after 1
January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with “HKAS
12 — Income Taxes” and “HKAS 19 — Employee
Benefits” respectively;
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1
January 2010 (continued)

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions
of the Group are measured in accordance with
"HKFRS 2 — Share-based Payment” at the acquisition
date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with “HKFRS 5 — Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-conftrolling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or another measurement
basis required by another standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1
January 2010 (continued)

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill
or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the measurement period
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date. Measurement period does not exceed
one year from the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with “HKAS 39", or “HKAS 37 — Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Business combinations that took place on or after 1
January 2010 (continued)

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity before the acquisition date are
reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains control
over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), or additional assets
or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as
of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January
2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date
of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the conditions for recognition were generally
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the
Group's interest in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the
excess was recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January
2010 (continued)

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its inferest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of an associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assefts, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of “HKAS 39" are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with "HKAS 36 — Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

JOINT VENTURES

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements which involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers have
joint control over the economic activity of the entity are
referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the jointly controlled entities.
When the Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of a jointly controlled entity recognised
at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

The requirements of “HKAS 39" are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in a jointly controlled
entity. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with "HKAS 36 — Impairment of Assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
“"HKAS 36" to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not related
to the Group.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated at cost or fair value less
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation. Freehold or leasehold land is stated at
revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of freehold
or leasehold land and buildings is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in properties
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised as an expense in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation
surplus is tfransferred to accumulated profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or fair
value of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in properties
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values using the fair value model. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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LEASING (CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance lease or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the refranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenfing the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and theirincome and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (translation reserve).

From 1 January 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a foreign
operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-confrolling interests and are notf recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or jointly controlled entities that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a tfransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

All expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

CLUB DEBENTURES

Club debentures are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition orissue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is excluded
in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including

financial assets held-for-trading and those designated at
FVTPL on initial recognition.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including non-current advance to a jointly
controlled entity, shareholder’s loan to a jointly controlled
entity, amounts due from jointly controlled entities, trade
and other receivables and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investments revaluation reserve, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy
on impairment of financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as aresult of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 60 to 90 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investments revaluation reserve. For
available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of
the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
amounts due to jointly controlled entities and secured bank
loans) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less tfransaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with
“HKAS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with "HKAS 18 — Revenue”.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when
the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited, i.e. share options lapse as a result of resignation
of employees after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured
at the fair values of the services received, unless that fair
value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the
services received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair values of the
services received are recognised as expenses with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserves),
when the counterparties render services, unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF TANGIBLE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL (SEE THE ACCOUNTING
POLICY IN RESPECT OF GOODWILL ABOVE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the impairment loss is freated as revaluation decrease
under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.
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Information reported to the chief operating decision maker,
being the managing director of the Group, for the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment
focuses specifically on the assessment of operating
performance in each operating unit, which is the basis
upon which the Group is organised. Each operating unit is
distinguished based on types of goods or services delivered
or provided, i.e. footwear manufacturing, retailing and
sourcing and property investment and holding. Financial
information on segment results and segment assets are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker
while no information of segment liabilities is provided. The
Group's reportable segments under “"HKFRS 8 — Operating
Segments” are as follows:

1. Footwear manufacturing;
2. Retailing and sourcing - retailing and provision of
sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear and

accessories; and

3. Property investment and holding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ISR M EE

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2010

REVENUE
External sales

Segment profit (loss)

Corporate income
— Inferest income
— Gain on disposal
of available-for-sale
investments
— Others
Central administrative costs
Share of results of joinfly
controlled entities

Profit before tax

DERE BN EE

TREJNAEENZAIREDHBEXENRE

B

B ZE2010F12A31BLLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2009 (Restated)

REVENUE
External sales

Segment profit (loss)

Corporate income
— Interest income
— Others
Central administrative costs
Share of results of jointly
conftrolled entities

Profit before tax

Consolidated
wE
HKD’000
FEx

1,947,473

189,705

7,865

20,491
278
(50,579)

(41,394)

126,366

Consolidated
wae
HKD'000
FHET

1,784,907

138,023

10,126
496

Property
investment
Footwear Retailing and and holding
manufacturing sourcing RER
EENE ZTERKE BEWX
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FERT FET FET
HER
HIMEE 1,869,365 71,284 6,824
75 2B A (B518) 67,499 (42,247) 164,453
BERKA :
— FEWA
—HE—FIHEE
wE W
—HAft
R RATIR AR
EHRARHIERES
B3 B A i
HZE2009F12A31 B ILFE (F5)
Property
investment
Footwear Retailing and and holding
manufacturing sourcing BER
ERRE TERKE BEWE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHET FET
=
HIMHE 1,701,530 77,178 6,199
2 &b A (B18) 113,461 (38,953) 63,515
BERA :
— FLEWA
—H At
R RITHBUR AR

HHFEEHEREEE

BRIt ATE R

(61,619)
(58,498)

28,528
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SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group's accounting policies described in
Note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit (loss)
earned or incurred by each segment without allocation of
interest income, gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments, otherincome, centfral administrative costs and
share of results of jointly controlled entities. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

SEGMENT ASSETS

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by
reportable segment:

Segment assets

Footwear manufacturing RS
Retailing and sourcing TERKEE
Property investment and holding BERFEEWE
Total segment assets DEEER
Unallocated RHBC
Consolidated assets HAEAE

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than advance to jointly controlled entities, interests
in jointly controlled entities, available-for-sale
investments, deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
club debentures, amounts due from jointly conftrolled
entities, held-for-trading investments and bank
balances and cash.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ISR M EE

REVENUE FROM MAJOR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its

major products and services:

Footwear manufacturing
Retailing and sourcing

Property investment and holding

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

BRI
T RR
B RN

The Group's revenue from exfternal customers by
geographical location of the delivery destinations and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

The People’s Republic
of China

Taiwan

Hong Kong

United States of America

Canada

Other European countries
(Note 1)

Vietnam

Other Asian countries
(Note 1)

Others (Note 1)

HEEARLFE

Al

e

EH

mex

HaBUMER
(3£1)

e

HibmMER
(3£1)

EAM (51)

REETEERRBRBH KRS
REFEEMMRBOAEEK TSN
T~
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FTER FHET
1,869,365 1,701,530
71,284 77,178
6,824 6,199
1,947,473 1,784,907
#hEE R

REE I EE PR aIRE X B 1R
DENEFRPEEBRIREEMEILED

BEEBOT

Revenue from

external customers

Year ended

Non-current
assets located (Note 2)

BMBEF WS REEEFREM (72)
2010 2009 2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FTER FET FHET TET
(Restated)
(&%)
89,389 66,231 482,434 354,235
- 10,947 10,240 9,641
6,824 6,199 355,173 289,784
959,576 899,489 - -
87,823 72,019 - -
479,176 501,924 - -
- - 15,266 14,307
172,618 174,673 - -
152,067 53,425 - -
1,947,473 1,784,907 863,113 667,967
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A MR

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. The geographical information for the revenue attributed to
each country is not available and the cost to develop it
would be excessive.

2. Non-current assets excluded financial instruments, advance
to jointly controlled entities, interests in jointly confrolled
entities, available-for-sale investments, deferred tax assets,
tax recoverable and club debentures of which the Group
considered it is impracticable to decide the location of
assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
conftributing over 10% of the total sales, all of which are
included in footwear manufacturing segment of the Group,
are as follows:

Customer A A& R

Customer B &

Customer C BER

Interest on secured bank loans wholly RFENEBHEEZ
repayable within five years BEMAERFE
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B ISR M EE

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHET
Current tax: ARHARRIE ¢
Hong Kong BE
- current year —KEE - 66
— overprovision in prior years —BAEFERERE - (108)
Other jurisdictions Hith BlA R I
- current year —REE 1,499 884
— (over)underprovision in prior years —BAFETR (B5E) BE (88) 165
1,411 1,007
Deferred tax (Note 23): IRIERITE (M 5523) :
- current year —REE 37,359 9,778
Taxation attributable to the Company ARRRHKIB A A
and its subsidiaries FE(RTRIE 38,770 10,785

HONG KONG TAX

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

From March 2008 to January 2010, the IRD issued protective
profits tax assessments for additional tax which amounted
to approximately HKD78,600,000 in aggregate, relating to
the years of assessment of 2001/2002 to 2003/2004, those
were, for the financial years ended 31 December 2001 to
2003, against certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. The Group had lodged objections with the IRD
against the protective profits tax assessments. The IRD
agreed to hold over the additional tax claimed subject to
the relevant subsidiaries’ purchases of tax reserve
certificates (“TRCs”) of HKD23,214,000 in aggregate for
those three years of assessment. These TRCs were
purchased and included in tax recoverable as at the
respective year end dates.

In January 2011, the IRD issued another protective profits
tax assessments, for an aggregate additional tax of
HKD26,400,000, relating to the year of assessment of 2004/
2005, that is, for the financial year ended 31 December
2004, against the above mentioned wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company. The Group had lodged
objection with the IRD against the protective assessment.
The IRD agreed to hold over the tax claimed subject to
the purchase of TRCs of HKD10,200,000.

EFRBIE

BRNERIVIZMEFE A G ERTORE
I E16.5%1H ©

B2008F3A£2010F 1A » MEHE LR
BUMAEHATBAE  ARARRETE
A A E A 717 2001/20024F € 2003/
20044 - BI&ELZE 20014 %2003 12 431
B LB R R AT % - BN R4
478,600,000/ 7T = 7N 5 [ B 3t (R IE 1
FSHAHRARGBRERY - BERREE
BEEBBEN 2 EBR  ZEMERRER
ZZFHMREMTIRBERESE
23,214,000 TR R ([REHF]) - &%
ERNSFOEBSFEIENRETET AR -

M20114F1 A - g REL S —HREMMR
BHARBNE  BAAQRLMEERS
M B A B 2004/20054 & - BN &L 52004
F12R31 B IEHRFEOBBETZ - 58I
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HONG KONG TAX (CONTINUED)

Directors believe that no provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax in respect of the above mentioned protective
assessments is necessary. In addition, the inquiries from the
IRD are still at a fact-finding stage and the IRD has not yet
expressed any formal opinion on the potential tax liability,
if any. The potential tax liability, if any, cannot be readily
ascertained at this stage.

PRC TAX

The tax status for certain subsidiaries of the Group operating
in the PRC, including Zhongshan Jingmei, Fuging Grand
Galatica and Zhongshan Huali, are as follows:

. Zhongshan Jingmei and Zhongshan Huali enjoyed the
preferential tax rate of 12.5% (being 50% of the
applicable tax rate of 25%) for the years from 2008 to
2010. Thereafter, the tax rate will increase to 25% from
the year 2011 onwards;

. Fuging Grand Galatica enjoyed the preferential tax
treatment of 22% and 10% (being 50% of the
applicable tax rate of 20%) for the years 2010 and
2009 respectively. Thereafter, the tax rate will step up
to 24% and 25% for the years 2011 and 2012
respectively.

For the other PRC subsidiaries, the applicable tax rate was
25% during the year.

VIETNAM TAX

Stateway Vietnam was entitled to an exemption from
enterprise income tax for four years starting with the first
profit-making year. For the following nine years, Stateway
Vietnam would be entitled to a further tax preferential tax
freatment in the form of a 50% reduction in the applicable
tax rate in Vietnam. Stateway Vietnam has not yet
commenced its tax exemption period due to its loss position
in 2009 and the tax exemption period was commenced in
2010 onwards.
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R BEERILEE - BERA R ILERN
T :

. E2008F £2010%F + H ILHEEKH
WENZERBERFE  HEXR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VIETNAM TAX (CONTINUED)

Continuance Vietnam was entitled to an exemption from
enterprise income tax for two years starting with the first
profit-making year. For the following three years,
Continuance Vietnam would be entitled to a further tax
preferential tax treatment in the form of a 50% reduction
in the applicable tax rate in Vietham. Continuance
Vietnam has not yet commenced its tax exemption period
due fo its loss position in 2009 and 2010.

OTHERS

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax bR BRI E F

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% K&EBFESHHE16.5%:1 &

Tax effect of expenses not deductible TEMEHRIBENRSZ 2
for tax purpose MiGs 2

Tax effect of income not taxable EARBHWAZ
for tax purpose ka4

Tax effect of share of results of jointly HHRESIEEEE .
conftrolled entities ka4

(Over)underprovision in respect
of prior years
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

BEFE (BHE) TRER
RERRBERZRIGZE

Effect of tax exemptions granted BRY¥ETHBRARZHG
to certain subsidiaries HewE

Income tax on concessionary rate EEBETHRED

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R H fth B3 & & 4 & I B 2
operating in other jurisdictions TRME 28

Deferred taxation on withholding tax Fp B B 8 A Rl R 3 B & F
arising on undistributed profits FREE &R TEEL
in PRC subsidiaries RIERLIE

Taxation for the year REEHIE

In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred
tax relating to the surplus on reclassification from prepaid
lease payments, and property, plant and equipment fo
investment properties and revaluation of the Group'’s
properties was charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income (see Note 23).

B ISR M EE

MR B E ()

RS ME B E ESRIS &N F R R
BHE  ERE=F  BAKATZEEEM
B8 - AR R S R AT E AR R
50% ° 0 B B E 70 2009 4F 12201045
REBBEN - RIDAFHBTEARBEH 2
£

Hity

Hib REREBTEARTIE - THKEEEDE
RIARITHEGTH -
FEMIBALRE 2E KR P BRTBRTSF %
BRunR -

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FTHET FHET
(Restated)

(&E5)

126,366 28,528
20,851 4,708
184 696
(6,627) (2,198)
6,830 9,652
(88) 57
12,948 7,685
(6,543) (10,873)
(508) (903)

Al

11,162 50
561 1,911
38,770 10,785

Wit MBS E - BRENH BEARE
FOREREMEREEAREMEFIGZ
EHOEBEEIE - RERELbEAK
wepE AR (RHE2) -
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A MR

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHEIT
(Restated)
(E7))
Profit for the year has been arrived FEHF B Nk
at after charging: TH&18 :
Directors’ emoluments (Note 8) EF08 (HE8) 7,739 20,498
Other staff costs Hitn g 8 A 399,647 358,950
Retirement benefits schemes RIKAEFET B R
contributions, excluding directors TEREES 14,872 16,907
422,258 396,355
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ELET B 2,728 2,530
Allowance for inventories, net (included TFE#KFE (BEHE
in cost of sales) TESHE K A) 6,558 8,498
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &1+ & 778 # 84 518 526
Cost of inventories recognised as expense TR /A5 X H17 & Ak A 1,585,502 1,437,838
Depreciation of property, plant LESN
and equipment RIEITE 41,377 43,038
Exchange losses X B8 14,602 2,810
Research and development costs Tt 75 K B B8 B AR
(included in administrative expenses) (BREETHAR) 19,261 23,649
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  BE
and equipment N EEE 1,387 3,592
and after crediting: PASEIPNE
Gain on disposal of investment property &Y - BELREES - 30
Net reversal of allowance for bad RERBHER T
and doubtful debts 810 440
Exchange gains P& H Yz - 2,743
Gross rental income from investment KEMERS
properties WA B%E 6,824 6,199
Less: direct operating expenses from B RNAFEEAE
investment properties that HelAr
generated rental income REMHEEE
during the year KRS (292) (287)
6,532 5,912
Interest income from: F B
Bank deposits RITIF K 734 1,569
Available-for-sale investments AIHIEERE 672 3,327
Loans to a jointly controlled entity BERTF—HREHIE S 6,459 5,230
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B ISR M EE

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND 8. EEWEIRESHMN
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
A. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS A. EEWS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the BT EN +—% (2009 : +=4)
eleven (2009: thirteen) Directors were as follows: EERemT
2010 2010
Chan  Chang Chen  Cheng feng  Huang Ho Ho Sze
Chan Ting Tsung Fang Kar lei  Sheng Shing Ting Sun Sun

luMin  Chuen Yuan Mei Shing Ming Lan Chak Seng  LilNan Tony Total
BESE  REN  RER  R¥E BRR BEW  EBE  ARE A ZEE  REF 4%
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000 HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TEx TEr iR TER TR TER TEn TR TEx  TEn  TER  TER

Fees -4 120 - - 120 9% 9% 9% 9% - 9% - 720
Other emoluments Ebis
Solories and other benefits & RAfER - 140 1,483 - - - - - 140 - 1915 5678
Bonus (Nofe) T4 (i) - 250 300 - - - - - 150 - 420 1120
Confributions fo refirement £ {FiEFI3 &l
benefits schemes 3 - 40 - - - - - - 40 - 101 21
Total emoluments nenE 120 1,450 1,783 120 9% 9% 9% 9% 1,350 9% 2436 17}
2009 2009
Likwok
Chan  Chang Ho Ho Hang Lung Sze
Chan Tng  Tung  Chen  Cheng fFeng  Shing Ting  Sheng Ku Alired Sun Sun

LuMin  Chuen Yuan FangMei KarShing LeiMing  Chek Seng Lom EdwardY.  LilNan  Ronald Tony Total
BEE REN  FER  Rrx BERX BEH fiRE [ EBE Ear 2R3 ZEE EAH a%

HKD'000  HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Tén ThEn TER  TEx TEn  TET  Thn TEr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEx

Fees BR 120 - - 60 9 9% 9 - 48 30 9 60 - 702
Other emoluments

Salaries and other benefits - 1,200 1473 - - - - 1,200 - - - 12800 2016 18489

Bonus (Note| ) - 200 200 - - - - 150 - - - - 336 886

Contributions fo refirement & /REI3 &

benefits schemes #3 - 60 - - - - - 60 - - - - 101 21
Total emoluments HEEE 120 1,460 1,673 60 9 9% 9 1,410 48 30 9% 12,860 2453 20,498
Note: The bonus is based on the performance of individuals Bt it - AEATIRERIA £ R A BRI M E
and the entity. A o

No Director waived any emoluments and no HZ20104 220094128318 [EF
compensation was paid for loss of office for the year B SIEESH e RS K E R
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009. B 74 T JE ST ST AR AR o
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A MR

B. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS B. & & H
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the five HZE2010F12A31HIEFE » AR
highest paid individuals included two (2009: three) AEETMNERAL  BEMBE
Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in (A) £(2009 : =&) F HENFMER
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2009: EXC(A)EE - Hig =4 (2009 ©
two) individuals are as follows: B ANTHEFBAT
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHEIT
Salaries and other benefits e REMBET 4,432 2,800
Retirement benefits schemes RIREF T BIH K
contributions 142 120
4,574 2,920
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HENHFMIHETISBENR
2010 2009
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH EE A%
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7L £ 1,500,000 7T 2 2
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHEIT
2009 final dividend of HKD0.013 2R {2009 4 HA K A% &2
(2009: 2008 final dividend FEBER0.013E T
of HKDO0.010) per ordinary (2009 : 20084 AR A% &
share paid 0.010/87T) 22,673 17,440
No interim dividend was paid or declared in 2009 and 2010. 20094 Kk 2010F 9 & & 5 R 7 BAR%
For the year ended 31 December 2010, a final dividend of B - HE2010F12A31HILFE =54
HKDO.015 (2009: HKDO0.013) per ordinary share, amounting IR B AR R B8 38 A% 0.01578 7T (2009 :
fo HKD26,161,000 (2009: HKD22,673,000) has been proposed 0.013%87L) ' L& &A26,161,000/8 7T
by Directors and is subject to the approval by the (2009 : 22,673,000/ 70) * MEEFRER
shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming general BAERgHE -
meefting.
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B ISR M EE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RAREBBRES ABELEARCHENS
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on RRBFI T T BIRET & -

the following data:

2010 2009

Earnings &R
Profit for the year attributable to owners A FHEA AFES

of the Company (HKD) R F) (B TT) 87,861,000 17,963,000
Number of shares Rio#E
Number of ordinary Shares in issue FABEITH

during the year LTmREE 1,744,044,773 1,744,044,773
The computation of diluted earnings per ordinary share MR20094F - R AR EERENITEES
does not assume the exercise of share options for 2009 SRR MTFEHE - StELE g T RRA
because the exercise price of the Company’s option was R RBATEEARRE o ERANMEHAR -
higher than the average market price of the shares. No RA BN A ARITRAERE - Bt - 50
diluted earnings per ordinary share for 2010 has been 010F M ELHETRAT 27

presented because the Company did not have any
outstanding share options at the end of the reporting
period.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST OR VALUATION
At T January 2009,

as originally stafed
Effect of changes

in accounting policies

AT January 2009, os restated

Exchange realignment

Additions

Surplus arising on revaluation

Reclossified fo investment
properties

Disposals

At 31 December 2009,

as restated
Exchange realignment
Addifions
Surplus arising on revaluation
Disposals

At 31 December 2010
Comprising:

Af cost
At valuation - 2010

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

AR T January 2009
Exchange realignment
Provided for the year
Write back on revaluation
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2009
Exchange realignment
Provided for the year
Write back on revaluation
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2010

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2010

At 31 December 2009,
as restated

AT January 2009, as restated

AAME

RN09EIA1E -
3

SHURERNTE

R2009F1A18 - HE7]
E5ES|

HE

ERELNER
ENMHRERENZ

HE

H2009512A318 -
a8l
B3 8

AE
EfELENRYR
HE

R2010£124318

8-
ik
#1010

ELEHE
R2009E1A18
EHES|
ERER
EfFREE
HERES
R2009£12A318
EHES|
ERER

EfFREE
HERES

H2010£124318

B
R2010£12A318

R2009512A318 -
RE]

R09ETAIE - BE7|

1. ¥ BERKXRE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

Furniture,
freehold  Leasehold Leasehold fixtures
leasehold land in improve- and
inTaiwan  Hongkong ments  Plantand  equipment Motor
REEH  REEN  buldngs  BEYE  machinery BB vehicles Total
KAEELE  RELH £ B HERRE RERRE AE ag
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
Titr T T Tt Tt T T Tt
5,805 - 121,382 75750 262,187 30,806 14,735 510,665
- 67,495 - - - - - 67,495
5,805 67,495 121,382 75750 262,187 30,806 14,735 578,160
14] - 66 18 2 25 (33) 217
- - - 8,441 6,483 3,162 1,163 19,249
445 31,138 6,237 - - - - 37,820
- (23,098) (21,113 - - - - (44.211)
- - - (13.679) (28,891) 4,087) (3,599) (49.95)
6,391 75,535 106,572 70,530 240,081 29,906 12,264 541,279
659 - 3,664 2,289 7,164 677 213 14,666
- - - 7,674 10,028 4,068 448 2218
- 2797 (4,898) - - - - 18,899
- - - (1.934) (4,538) (544) (422) 7,438)
7,050 99,332 105,338 78,559 252,735 34,107 12,503 589,624
- - - 78,559 252,735 34,107 12,503 377,904
7,050 99,332 105,338 - - - - 170
7,050 99,332 78,559 252,735 34,107 12,503 589,624
- - - 54,257 142,020 20,028 11,619 2794
- - - 23 | 25 18 67
- 1,692 5,512 8,452 2912 3,620 850 43,038
- (1.692) (5,512) - - - - (7,204)
- - - (10,697) (23,061) (3,384) (3.471) (40.613)
- - - 52,035 141,872 20,289 9,016 23012
- - 1,754 3960 525 317 6,556
- 2014 4,841 9,115 21,344 3289 774 41,377
- (2014) (4,841) - - - - (6,859)
- - - 1,581) (3,394) (408) (380) (5.763)
- - - 61,323 163,782 23,695 9,721 258,527
7,080 99,332 105,338 17,236 88,953 10,412 2,776 331,097
6,391 75,535 106,572 18,495 98,209 9,617 3,248 318,067
5,805 67,495 121,382 21,493 120,167 10,778 3116 350,236

86 Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated, after taking into account their estimated
residual values, on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Freehold land in Taiwan Nil
Leasehold land in Hong Kong 2%-3%
Buildings 2%-5%
Leasehold improvements 9%-45%
Plant and machinery 9%-45%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9%-20%
Motor vehicles 16%-20%

During the year ended 31 December 2009, certain
property, plant and equipment of the Group were disposed
of due to closure of a production plant in the PRC.

The buildings of the Group located in the PRC and the
leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong were fair valued
on 31 December 2010 by Prudential, an independent firm
of professional property valuer, Chartered Surveyor. The
freehold land and building of the Group located in Taiwan
was fair valued as of the same date by Chia-Tai Real Estate
Appraises, an independent firm of property valuer,
Chartered Surveyor. Prudential and Chia-Tai Real Estate
Appraises are not connected with the Group.

The valuations of leasehold and freehold land adopted a
direct comparison approach with reference to market
comparable sales evidences available in the market and
where appropriate on the depreciated replacement cost
approach in the absence of comparable sales evidences.

B ISR M EE

PRIV - BB MR EEVIE B TR IR
HERAFIRBEETIFREUAERER
[

REBHmXALELY &

MEENEE L 2%-3%
BF 2%-5%
HEMEEE 9%-45%
5 K% s 9%-45%
KRB KERRE 9%-20%
nE 16%-20%

EZE2009F12A31HIEFE - BRAEE
B RPENEERE  HEHESR
THOE - BB RRE -

20105128318 - AEBEURPEKRE
BHBT BB R ER SR AT
EMARITETER - AEBERENKA
FRIHERBFRABH B EEYER
B R SR ER TS EG B ELM
ETEM o BRTRERTBEGBER
P 887K 5 [ 37 R -

HHE ROk AE RN EEDRMEELL
Ok - DH2RENS LTS A L EHER
BMEERE - MAAERZ A LB & Bk AT
ERAEEZEMEE (WEMR) -

FEEEBRAT 2010 BFHE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

If the land and buildings had not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
of HKD108,212,000 (31.12.2009 (restated): HKD111,119,000).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has pledged leasehold
land and buildings having a carrying value of
HKD112,215,000 (2009 (restated): HKD89,772,000) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group of which
HKD80,000,000 had been utilised in 2010 (2009: Nil).

FAIR VALUE

At 1 January 2009

Additions

Reclassified from property, plant
and equipment

Reclassified from prepaid lease
payments

Increase in fair value
recognised in profit or loss

Disposals

At 31 December 2009

Exchange realignment

Additions

Net increase in fair value
recognised in profit or loss

At 31 December 2010

SERUBAREDA -

T RBEFIB|EHEE - & AELK
RINFREHHTEE - B9 54&108,212,000
75 (31.12.2009 (E51) : 111,119,000/ 7T)
AR EFIERE -

20106128318 » ARFBHEMETHE
B+ RIEFEREMES112,215,000% 7T
(2009 (£31)) : 89,772,000 7T) + LAHER
—RPIAEEN-RROTEERB - 1
20104F + 80,000,000/ 7T (2009 : f&) 815

Investment
properties Completed
under investment
construction properties
BERH =124 Total
REWHE REY#E wEH
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FHET FET
RNFEE
R2009F1A1H - 112,450 112,450
NE 117,027 - 117,027
B BE k&R
BHH8E - 44,211 44,211
BIafHERE
B O - 2,102 2,102
RIBRERN
BB 2,290 55,460 57,750
e - (2,500) (2,500)
720096128318 119,317 211,723 331,040
ME X, &5 4,504 643 5,147
NE 17,551 - 17,551
RERERNODTFEE
EhnEE 113,817 45,407 159,224
72010 12831H 255,189 257,773 512,962
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All of the Group's leasehold interests in land and building
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2010 and 2009 were arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out on that date by Prudential. The
valuations of investment properties were arrived with
reference to market comparable sales evidences available
in the market.

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, a large portion of the
completed investment properties were rented out under
operating leases. Details of operating lease arrangements
are set out in Note 30.

The investment properties under construction is a bare land
at an initial development stage.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has pledged certain
completed investment properties having a carrying value
of HKD197,785,000 (2009: HKD158,228,000) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group of which
HKD80,000,000 had been utilised in 2010 (2009: Nil).

The carrying value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

Completed properties in Hong Kong: BERECEKME
Long lease REBEE
Medium-term lease REEE

Properties outside Hong Kong: BB E
Completed properties EERMEFEEE

at medium-term lease
Properties under construction Ry ERREE

at medium-term lease

B ISR M EE

AEEREEHEFES WA ERNEER
BHPRE T RE TR EEER - TIARF
ERAFE - TRDBRIAREMEAR

20104 220091243180 » REEEZEE
MEN D FEDBHARITRETEGERDN
EESE - MIAMEDH2ENSRAUYEN
AL ESH R T E

H20104 20091243180 + KEHEE
MECIRGEHENME - REHERHFHA
EERHIFES0

RN EMEDNZEE - DENHERRE

B e

20105128310 - AEBEBEEAE TR
HmEA/197,785,000% 7t (2009 ¢
158,228,000/ 70) BV E W% - AR —
BEPAREEN—RRITEERBE - K2010
%+ 80,000,000 st {= & BLim 2 ) A
(2009 : f&) o

B EMENERERR -

2010 2009

HKD’000 HKD'000

TR THET

7,000 6,300

233,085 188,376

17,688 17,047

255,189 119,317

512,962 331,040
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A MR

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has not obtained the
formal title to the interest of land at a carrying amount of
HKD42,925,000 (2009: HKD119,317,000). In the opinion of the
directors, the absence of formal titles of these land interest
do not impair their value to the Group as the Group has
paid the full purchase consideration of the land interests
and the probability of being evicted on the ground of an
absence of formal title is remote.

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: & AN TE & £ 3t -

Held under medium-term lease LhEf SRS
Analysed for reporting purposes as: DT {ERE i ¢

Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets MBEE

Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report

20106128318 « KEEERER TZ
SHWMERNFERE  ZFLHOREER
42,925,000 7t (2009 : 119,317,000/%
) BERAR  REIHsBETEAR
RZE LR EXERTRD - A%
Bz E L ERTEENERE B
B RRIE USR8 3 e AT BEMEEAR -

AEEMANEERERSRE

31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHEIT FHET
(Restated) (Restated)

(E51) (&E51)

19,572 19,359 21,784
19,054 18,860 21,268

518 499 516
19,572 19,359 21,784




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

COST

At 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009
Deregistration of a subsidiary

At 31 December 2010

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2009 and 31 December 2009
Eliminated on deregistration of a subsidiary

At 31 December 2010

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2010

At 31 December 2009

Cost of investment in an associate — unlisted

Share of post-acquisition losses
and other comprehensive income

B ISR M EE

HKD'000
FHET
B AR
200941 A1 H K20094F12A31H 57,477
EE—MWEAA (2.786)
20106 12A318 54,691
A
#20094 1 A 18 K&2009412A31H 57,477
b2l (0 S /NI OF S i (2,786)
20104128318 54,691
FRmEE
2010612A318H -
20094 12A318 -
2010/2009
HKD'000
FAET
KB & A BRI E KA (3E L) 26
IEU B B R R H A AR A A
(26)

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group had interests

in the following associate:

Form of
business
Entity structure
NH RERB
Global Hero Group Limited Incorporated
I EEER A =3

Place of
incorporation/
operation
Hf EELE

British Virgin
Islands
RBRIEE

20104 2009 12A31H - "EEFAE
T A R

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital
held by the Group

AEEHEEN Principal
Class of share BRITRAE activity
R0 B HEBDL TEED
Ordinary 33.46% Dormant
TER NE
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A MR

16. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 16. HEEHERBER & %ﬁ
ENTITIES/ADVANCE TO JOINTLY EEHIERE &/J?Eﬁ
CONTROLLED ENTITIES/AMOUNTS DUE EHER
FROM/TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHET
Interests in jointly controlled entities: HEEH B
Cost of unlisted investments in jointly REREHIEEIE ETREDN
controlled entities (Note i) A (K a) 298,718 225,906
Share of post-acquisition net losses M EBEFER
and other comprehensive income, Hibsra WA
net of dividends received (Rere %k 2) (207,501) (169,128)
91,217 56,778
Advance to jointly controlled entities: BT HRZEGEE -
Non-current advance to a jointly FERBERT — HRAEHE
controlled entity (Note ii) (B &ii) 108,451 108,335
Shareholders’ loan to a jointly RERERT — LR E S
controlled entity (Note iii) (Bt #iii) 62,937 62,775
171,388 171,110
At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group had interests in R20105F M 2009F 128318 » REEEA

the following principal jointly controlled entities: AT HREEGH B #ER

Proportion of
nominal value of

Form of issued capital held
business Place of by the Group
Jointly controlled entity structure incorporation Class of Share AEEREN Principal activities
HEZHER HE- - it B R &R ERTRAEERDL TEED
2010 2009
Smart Shine Industries Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding
(4 Islands LEE and footwear trading
RERUES REBRRERES
Grand Wealth Group Limited Incorporated Brifish Virgin Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding
¥ Islands LER and men's apparel
KBERUHEE Preferred 18% 18% marketing and trading
[Note iv) REBBRRETHRE
BER 2HAEEZS
(Hftiv)
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B ISR M EE

16. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 16. HEZFERER EXTH
ENTITIES/ADVANCE TO JOINTLY REZFER Y ENHE
CONTROLLED ENTITIES/AMOUNTS DUE EHER (8
FROM/TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(CONTINUED)

Proportion of
nominal value of
Form of issued capital held
business Place of by the Group
Jointly controlled entity structure incorporation Class of Share ARERHEN Principal activities
HEEHER BERR sk B &R BRATRFEERIN TEED
2010 2009
China Ocean Resources Limited  Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding,
% Islands Lidk trademark rights
HBREIZES licensing and
footwear frading
RERR  AERE
REREES
JFT Holdings Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding
BHEBRERERAA ¥ B Limk and retailing of apparel,
footwear and accessories
RERRRRE  EE
HRHTE
Welcome Wealth Properties Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding
Limited % Islands Lidk and footwear trading
RERAEE RERRKERES
Splendours International Limited  Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 50% 50% Footwear sourcing
LREARARDA % Islands LRk BEERE
RERAEE
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A MR

16.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES/ADVANCE TO JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

During the year, the Group invested an additional
HKD72,812,000 as capital contribution intfo JFT Holdings
Limited and Welcome Wealth Properties Limited (“Welcome
Wealth").

The total advance to China Ocean Resources Limited
(*China Ocean”) was unsecured, interest-free and had no
fixed term of repayment. The Group has no intention to
exercise its right fo demand repayment of the advance
within the next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Directors believe the settlement of the advance is
not likely to occur in the foreseeable future and that it is, in
substance, a part of the Group's net investment in China
Ocean. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current
asset.

The shareholders’ loan to Grand Wealth Group Limited
("Grand Wealth") was unsecured and interest-bearing at
aggressive rates up fo maturity which ranged from 8% to 11%
(2009: 8% to 11%) per annum, and denominated in USD. The
maturity date of the shareholders’ loan is 30 June 2016.
Directors believe the settlement of the advance is not likely
to occurin the foreseeable future and that it is, in substance,
a part of the Group's net investment in Grand Wealth.

The preferred shares shall have the same right and privileges
to income as the ordinary shares in the proportion of 99:1.

The amounts due from/to jointly controlled entities are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
amount due from jointly controlled entities is expected to
be repaid within next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and is classified as current asset.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to jointly
controlled entities at the end of the reporting period
denominated in foreign currency (i.e. HKD) are as follows:

16.

HEZHEERERD & %
FZHIEE & &/FEH
ZHER (3

GEX

REE - REBFEIMNTET2,812,0008 7T
ERIRALEE TRREBERERDRR
Welcome Wealth Properties Limited
([Welcome Wealth]) °

ii. N E 7 4 F China Ocean Resources
Limited ([China Ocean]) EyZE 5N EA R
BRI ANFEREERTERFY - £
RBERARORETZEAR - NEEE
BTN Z kZAREH B ERZS
;o BRIE  ZRATERARBRE
& WEE FEAEEMChina Ocean
HIEPDIREFEE - Bt - ZBRWHEA
IERBEE °

iii. 4 ¥ Grand Weath Group Limited
([Grand Weath]) M IR R E FR EER
RAAFE - EFEIL8%E11% (2009 :
S%ill%)LiE.‘ BB YAETTE
B BEEFMEEAEA2016F6830
H - EB248E - EZHQ%‘% RN ERE B
KFR WEELREAEERGrand
WealthH) 503 18 & F 58 ©

iv.  EEBSIRIINLLBIER R EBRER
U AR e A

JFEYL, FERT SRR G B B M RIH R IR
B8 WHERERERFER - TRHEKE
G EEFIES N B AR EH AL AR
TZEARAMNE WS ERAREBEE -

A & B z:s%lw\ﬁz(ﬂn%ﬁ) &
H IR SR BB M AR (8
m -

HKD
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Amounts due from Amounts due to

W [ 35)
2010 2009 2010 2009
HKD’'000 HKD'000 HKD’'000 HKD'000
FEx TETT FHET THETT
224 40 9 -




16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ISR M EE

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 16. HEIZEHEEER BRTH
ENTITIES/ADVANCE TO JOINTLY EEHIERE W EMAEE
CONTROLLED ENTITIES/AMOUNTS DUE EHER (&)
FROM/TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(CONTINUED)
The summarised financial information in respect of the TN B LRI | B B FE (A S LA RE S E
Group's attributable interest in its jointly controlled entities ABEZ B BERBmn T ¢
which are accounted for using the equity method is set
out below:
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FEx FHET
Current assets MENE E 156,466 116,494
Non-current assets EMBEE 222,442 182,345
Current liabilities e B E (115,175) (69,766)
Non-current liabilities FnEEE (172,51¢) (172,295)
Income recognised in profit or loss B P EROBA 126,983 68,454
Expenses recognised in profit or loss RiE=EP RO (168,377) (126,952)
Other comprehensive income Hasra A 3,021 5,320
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. AJHEERE
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHET
Listed investments: LR
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB LTHRAEES - 1
- Debentures listed outside Hong Kong —HEUIME ETHES
with fixed interest ranging M B B EFHE7.2%%
from 7.2% to 8.375% per annum 8.375% ' BIfA A
and maturity dates on 20134 3728H -
28 March 2013, 15 April 2013, 201348158 -
15 June 2013 and 2013%F 68158 K&
15 December 2049 20494128 15H 6,246 41,530
6,246 41,531
Unlisted equity securities IELETRAFS - 18,480
Total e 6,246 60,011
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A MR

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. OJHEERE (8)
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2009 and 2010, all listed investments 20094 22010128318 » fiB LW
were stated at fair value. Fair values were determined by BHUAFEERY - A EETIZER
reference to market bid prices quoted in relevant stock REGFMBEBREMEBTE -
exchanges.
The unlisted equity securities represented the Group’s 11.3% FTHELETRABSDARNEBRFEN
investment in Full Pearl International Limited which was N3%EENELEBEERABINEE - ¥
disposed of during the year with a gain of approximately FARNHELE15418,388,00078 7T Ay Uk
HKD18,388,000. As at 31 December 2009, the investment o PA20096F 12A31H » sz E B AN
was measured at cost less impairment because the range BRBEmET= - ARASEBEAFEBEDERE
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that BERE  MEFRAHEN AT EERER
Directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot FHEE o
be measured reliably.
18. INVENTORIES 18. &€
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FHET
Raw materials R A 98,396 41,374
Work in progress EB M 62,207 43,150
Finished goods 2K 120,896 86,730
281,499 171,254
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ESREMEWIRR
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FHEIT
Trade receivables B 5 AR 253,976 168,903
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o REREE (4,970) (5,780)
249,006 163,123
Other receivables, prepayment HEmEM R - BNRERETS
and deposits (Note) (H&t) 96,941 54,685
Total frade and other receivables B 5 & E b fE W IR R AB R 345,947 217,808
Note: Included in other receivables, prepayment and deposits as MsE © BIEE2010512 431 B Ay H b fE I BR -

FERRRET 2RI £ 439,525,000 TE
NPEGHRBNELERE - ABISE
RIE2011 451 A 81T 2 RFBIRMBBAL R

at 31 December 2010 are the deposits of approximately
HKD39,525,000 paid to Shenyang Plan and Land Resources
Bureau to qualify for a public auction of two parcels of land

located in Shenyang, PRC conducted in January 2011 and
the Group was successful in bidding the land (See Note
36(a)).
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The Group allows an average credit period ranging from
60 to 90 days to its frade customers. Included in tfrade and
other receivables are trade and bills receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts, of HKD249,006,000 (2009:
HKD163,123,000). The following is an aged analysis of tfrade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

0 to 30 days 0&230k
31 to 60 days 312 60K
61 to 90 days 61290k
Over 90 days #90K

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and score afttributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Approximately 98% (2009: 99%)
of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have no default payment history.

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
HKD4,365,000 (2009: HKD2,041,000) which were past due
at the end of reporting period but for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these receivables is 120 days (2009: 120 days).

AGEING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES WHICH ARE PAST DUE BUT
NOT IMPAIRED

Over 90 days #IOK

B ISR M EE

AEBMAHRZ HEFIREAIOREIOR
TENFHEER - EHREMBKRERE
R B249,006,000% 7T (2009 :
163,123,000/ 70) W& 5 R EKZ & 0k
RIS - RAREHK  UBEEEHA
it B HRIEETING RIERENERS
e

2010 2009
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FHET THETT
232,593 156,222
8,681 4,518
3,367 342
4,365 2,041
249,006 163,123

REMFBREEA > ARESRA—IBL
EEDHAGNGEZERPHERE X
EEZRPHNERRE - EPNEEERD
BesFLETM IR - 498% (2009 :
99%) FE 1 B SR E R B 5 FE YR TR I S 4
RASRAL 8% ©

REENE ZERER AR BIEREAED
4,365,000/% 7T (2009 : 2,041,000/ 7T) &)
BUWER - ZEHRAREERREHRE
H o AEEYEREREER o AEE
AN SRS A IR o L E R
RE T RRIEL /120K (2009 : 120K) °

WA AR AR E S BRSO AR

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FTHET THET
4,365 2,041
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MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS RRBEZEE
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET THETT

Balance at beginning of the year
Impairment losses recognised

FHEE R 5,780 6,220
B U IR RER B R E B 18

on receivables 4,780 3,520
Impairment losses reversed VERIEN SE=AEIEE (5.590) (3,960)
4,970 5,780
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts RAREER - NEBLEBEEZ B
of the Group's tfrade and other receivables that were BEBINNEE (BB SENE S KAEM
denominated in a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the FEWRIEMBREAERNT
functional currency of the relevant group entities were as
follows:
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FEx FHEIT
HKD BT 486 18
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FEx FHET
Held-for-trading investments include: BEEBERERIE
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BELETRRAES - 321
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The bank balances carried interest at prevailing market
rates which ranged from 0.01% to 0.36% (2009: 0.01% to
0.36%) per annum during the year. The time deposits carried
fixed interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.50% (2009: 0.01%
to 0.50%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the Group's bank balances and cash that were
denominated in a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities were as
follows:

HKD BT

Trade and bills payables B REMNEE
Other payables, temporary receipt

and accruals MFEFHER K

Included in frade and other payables are trade and bills
payables of HKD236,895,000 (2009: HKD159,737,000). The
following is an aged analysis of frade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

0 to 30 days 02 30K
31 to 60 days 31£2 60K
61 to 90 days 612 90K
Over 90 days #90K

H AR - ER A UK

B ISR M EE

FR - RITERBRBTHHFNERNF
0.01%%0.36% 1% (2009 : 0.01%%
0.36%) &t B & HFFIRE E F 7 =X
0.01%%20.50% 1% (2009 : 0.01%%
0.50%) 5T & °

RARREHR - AEBEAMEEEE BRI
BN ER (BT sHEMRTTER
LIRERIREERNT -

2010 2009
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FHET THETT
54,577 15,161
2010 2009
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FET THETT
236,895 159,737
214,169 151,568
451,064 311,305

B 5 Rk E A AT BR 3R B35 5 £236,895,000
77T (2009 159,737,000 7T) U E 5 M JE
NEE - RAREEAR  UWHZAHAHR
B ESEMERNERRSTOT

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHERT FET
129,256 82,072
54,762 39,827
23,402 16,594
29,475 21,244
236,895 159,737
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The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
fimeframe.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the Group's trade and other payables that were
denominated in a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities were as
follows:

HKD BT

The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

BAERHAE
BB B 1

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report
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A MR

BENTHEEHRIOKR  REEDHIFE
B i i R IR SR AR AR P A PR BR RIS 170
EEMRAGE -

AN

N
b1
2

N
B

Hith

SR AEBLEBEEEEN
BN EEE (BB sHENE S K&
ERERRMREmENT

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
T THET
9.274 7.184

FEAMBIE RSN REERIASHBRAN T

*x:
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 1.1.2009
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(87 (&7
(12,266) (13,127) (10,085)
77,517 36,781 15,628
65,251 23,654 5,543
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The following table shows the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon

B ISR M EE

AEEEHRBNEIEREREAE (B
E)  REERAFEBEFENEEHIE

during the current and prior years: IR -
Revaluation of
freehold and
leasehold Undistributed
land and earning of  Unrealised
buildings Revaluation of Accelerated of PRC's profiton  Allowance
XAERE  investments tax  subsidiaries inventories for bad and Tax
fE1i  properties depreciation HEKEAT FEH doubtful debt losses Total
REFERE REVEER NEREFE  AVREN 0 EHER  REERG  BEEA 4%
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TiEn T TiEn TiEn T T T TiEn
At 1 January 2009, R2009E1A1A -
as originally stated 31 2,529 1,906 4143 1,347 (219) 1552) 9.314) (160)
Effect of changes EHHEEENTE
in accounting policies 5,703 - - - - - - 5,703
At 1 January 2009, as restated RWMEIA1A - E5l 8,232 1906 4143 1347 (219) 552) (9.314) 5,543
Charge (credit) to profit or loss A G A) B - 10,289 620 191 82 3 3.163) 9,778
Charge to equity nERA 8,333 - - - - - - 8,333
At 31 December 2009, RAMEI2A318
as restated Ej 16,565 12,195 4,763 3,258 (137) (513) (12.477) 23,654
Charge (credit) 1o profit or loss MAGIA) B& - 35,946 9) 561 95) 489 467 37,359
Charge fo equity THBRA 4,238 - - - - - - 4238
At 31 December 2010 R2010£12A31H 20,803 48,141 4,754 3819 (232) (24) (12.010) 65,251

At 31 December 2010, the Group had unused tax losses of
HKD303,020,000 (2009: HKD227,378,000) available to offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses to the extent of
HKD72,789,000 (2009: HKD75,620,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused
tax losses of HKD230,231,000 (2009: HKD151,758,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All the tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely except for those
arising from the PRC which may be carried forward for five
years.

20109128318 » AEBEBAREHHE
B8 4303,020,000 5T (2009 :
227,378,000/ 7T) AT 4K 88 R s K o
S BERREERBAELCHEELEEYD
72,789,000/ 7T (2009 : 75,620,000/%

7o) ° RN AIEEIR R B2 FiBE -

FAAER R B TR 1B B3 15 49230,231,00078 7T
(2009 : 151,758,000/ 7T) i FRIEAE R TH &
E - FIETREBIE R SR HIEE - EXa P

B30 A] 4 88 R ) BIRES R RIBR S o
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A MR

Carrying amount of variable interest-rates AR —FRNEEMZEHFI LK

bank loans repayable within one year

bank loans that are not repayable
within one year from the end of
the reporting period but contain
a repayable on demand clause

Amounts shown under current liabilities HEREBBESRE

The Group has variable interest rate bank loans which carry
interest at Hong Kong Interbanks Offered Rate plus 1.25%
subject to a maximum of 3-month interest period.

The effective interest rates on the Group's bank loans is
1.36% (2009: Nil).

Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009
and 2010, at HKDO0.25 each

Issued and fully paid: BEETREAR
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009

and 2010, at HKDO0.25 each

Pursuant to the 2001 Scheme, the Company operates the
2001 Scheme for the purpose of providing eligible
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company and to encourage participants
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and
its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. All Directors, full-time employees
and any other persons who, at the sole discretion of the
board of directors, have contributed or will contribute to
the Group are eligible to participate in the 2001 Scheme.

Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report

RITENREAEE
Carrying amount of variable interest-rates 7B B AR EHR —F R
EEMNZEH =

WK BRERKE R GRS
RITEREREE

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET THETT
20,000 -
60,000 -
80,000 -

REENRITERMEZEE I METHE
BIRITREERZEREIM.25% @ F=HIFH
R=EA -

AEBBRTERZBEZMNER.36%
(2009 : f&) o

200941 A1 8 + 20094
K201012A318 -
FIREEO.25E T

200941 A 1H ~ 20094F
&201012A318 -
FRMEC.25E T

Number of shares Amount
g = k]

HKD'000

FAT

8,000,000,000 2,000,000
1,744,044,773 436,011

RHE20015 8 - AR BERM20015 8 & &£
REKE TAERZEENGSARTNER
Rz TREZ2EEURR 7&%&%%%
BMNRAKE  BORSAQFEREROH
BE- %ﬁ%% EREETREEENE
R BRI E A KB E L HB A EME
@Aiﬂ?Aéh/ﬂmmﬁ%
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Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2001 Scheme or any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue on the date of adoption.

The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’
approval provided that each such renewal may not
exceed 10% of shares in the Company in issue as at the
date of the shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2001 Scheme or any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and unexercised
options) under the 2001 Scheme or any other share option
schemes adopted by the Company in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This
period must expire no later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the options. At the time of grant of the options,
the Company may specify a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. The offer
of a grant of share options may be accepted within 14
days from the date on which the letter containing the offer
is delivered to that participant and the amount payable
on acceptance of an option is HKD1.00.

B ISR M EE

EFTE #2001 5 Bl ER E AR B D
AR R ST IR O FT A R IR IR AT B
BITEV R AL B T RESDR AR 2 B ER A
EHDETRMNI0% -

HEFFRCRAAE - A2 B AT BE AT 10%H0
PRAR - MEHUL BT MR R B TTROAR D 4R8N
TN EESEE AN A BRI R E R A B #1T
fe 17 #910% o

EAT6E A #2001 5t S RAEAE M AR A
R e A R B X T I i R TRE RV BB AR
REM AT BB TRO A R AR AR - T BEHA
FBE AR X BN 2 BT D #930% ©

BRI BCR A E - PMERNI2(E A HIRE - R
RBEFETTEZ2001 5 B R EMARE
R RT3 TR 2 RE N ERE
(BREETERHERTEOBERE) - EB
BITRETETORD GBS T TBRAR
AR EITRMI% -

BREUATENHBERAARAERDE
HiEE - MR BAHMTEHBRES AL
10FAER - REHBRER - ARFA
LR ABERENSEF AR - FHRE
MIRTIBEHRATIE - BRAR KB R T
@ SERETNEEGRREEEN KT
FEARIARANEZZER - TR
SRS R A A IR R BT ©
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The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotation sheets issued by the Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant. The subscription price will be established
by the board of directors at the time the option is offered
to the participants.

No options may be granted under the 2001 Scheme after
the date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the
2001 Scheme.

On 2 August 2006, the Company granted 166,050,000 share
options to eligible participants at an exercise price of
HKD1.032 pursuant to the 2001 Scheme. All of the share
options expired on 31 August 2009.
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AR BIRITEBRAEMEETORNBIEE
BAGER (AR GERE) (i) 53R B AE
BN ME R ETHRERNAR
AR R THE ¢ ()R EER BB
SETEREFINE 2P A ETHRER
EVA R BIAD T HE R (iil) RIR LB
g B AR BRMMEE - REBESHE
EENERRLBEET2REL AT

RERM2001 5T BT 1OBF A% - BIER
[ 4 AT 22001 51 8 & -

7200658 A2H + AR AIRIE20015HEI A
GRRFTEE(E1.032/8 7T H166,050,0001%
BRETEER2TE MABREER
2009412331 H B ©
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The following table discloses details of the share options
held by Directors, employees and a consultant and
movements in such holdings during the year ended
31 December 2009:

Exercise

Exercisable price

Category: Date of grant period per share
£ REAS THEER BROEE
(dd.mm.yy) (dd.mm.yy) (HKD)

(B.A.%) (B.A.%) (%)

Directors = 02.08.06 01.09.06-31.08.09 1.032
Employees EE 02.08.06 01.09.06-31.08.09 1.032
Consultant B 02.08.06 01.09.06-31.08.09 1.032

The consultant rendered consultancy service with regard
fo the setting up and management of the PRC operations
of the Group. The Group granted share options to him for
recognising his service similar fo those rendered by other
employees.

All share options held by Directors, employees and a
consultant were expired in 2009 and no options was
granted during the year ended 31 December 2010.

B ISR M EE

TREBRHZE2009F12A31HIEFERE
£ BB R—RBMAH A BRERIER
25

Number of share options

BREZE
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
1.1.2009 31.12.2009
#1.1.2009 Lapsed Expired  731.12.2009
AT %% o HATE

43,600,000 (16,500,000) (27,100,000 -

33910000 (13,500,000  (20,410,000) -

1,000,000 - (1,000,000) -

78,510,000 (30,000,000)  (48,510,000) -

ZER KL R E IR AR E BN P B EER
HEARIRTS - NEEEER HERETRRF
EfRH RS AL MERER -

FEES B2 R —FBREMEMEENERE
B 2009F W EH © B E201012H31H
LEEAR - B LR -
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the secured bank loans disclosed in note
24, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and various reserves.

Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of
this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with the share capital. The Group will

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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AEEEBEEBANRERNEENE R ATIA
S - WECRENRREN T EARE
fEMIZE AR & D3R - ANEEPTEIRFALE

AEENEREBBRERFE P EE
R 24 WENERBITENR  FRE
MReEEMRARFEA AEERER - &
R BTN R IRHE o

ERTHEHANEEEANRE - (FAEMD
—#n  BEEGZEERNEFNEARRE
K o AEE R BBEITHR R ETHE

balance its overall capital structure through new share KK ERIIRAER - TR ERLERE -
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of

existing debt.

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) @I AEEH
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHEx FHET
Financial assets SRMEE

Fair value through profit or loss FRBEREATEAENE
- held-for-trading investments —FIEEERE - 321
Loans and receivables (including B R ERERR (BIE

bank balances and cash) IRITHHBLIRS) 812,816 766,709
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESHEE 6,246 60,011
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost B SH P AR 431,467 208,136
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B ISR M EE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (B) <HEAREEBEEZREE
The Group's major financial instruments include AEBNTZESRTAREIHREE
available-for-sale investments, non-current advance BE - ERBERT REER - B
to/shareholder’s loan to/amounts due from/to jointly WRER LRSI EREHIE BEH K
controlled entities, frade and other receivables, held- HEWERNR - FHEEERE - 117
for-trading investments, bank balances and cash, ERERE  BHREMENERERK
trade and other payables and secured bank loans. BERBTER - L LSBT AMGT
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in EEHN AN - At E SR T A
the respective notes. The risks associated with these AHRREET SRR (EEER -
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, FMERBR R EMESRRE) - FER
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and BRRMENE SR o R UL ER R
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks BEREHIINTX - EEEFRER
are set out below. Management manages and MBI RS - FEIR T MBS A AUt
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate HEUEE -
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
Market risk 5 Bk
(i)  Currency risk (i) E¥RR
Several subsidiaries of the Company have REEME THEARMNEE
foreign currency sales and purchases, which LB TILINEZE S8R E
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. B#EZINER R o
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying ARG EIR - NEELAEE
amounts of the Group's monetary assets and EEEENREBUINE
monetary liabilities that were denominated in B ENET) #ENAEEER
a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the functional EEREKGENREEDAEN
currency of the relevant group entities were as T~
follows:
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2010 2009 2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FET FiBT TR FET
HKD BT 9,283 7,184 55,287 15,219
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(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
in USD/HKD exchange rate. However, the
foreign currency risk is not significant as HKD is
pegged to USD.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and
loan to a jointly controlled entity. Directors
consider the Group's exposure to fair value
interest rate risk is not significant as interest
bearing bank deposits are within short maturity
periods.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
deposits and secured bank loans. It is the
Group's policy to keep its deposits at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group's
USD denominated bank deposits and HKD
denominated bank loans.
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B ISR M EE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for both derivative and non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming these
financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on secured bank deposits had
been 50 basis points (2009: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31 December 2010 would increase/decrease
by HKD134,000 (2009: increase/decrease by
HKD869,000) attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
bank deposits. In addition, if interest rates on
secured bank loans had been 50 basis points
(2009: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's profit
for the year ended 31 December 2010 would
decrease/increase by HKD334,000 (2009: Nil)
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank loans.

(B)

TREREEEBRREE B

5 E R ()

(ii)

Y e (4E)
BRRE D
AT BURE DT EBERAER
EHR  TETARIITAET
BMFRERAE - RARS
HiR - RO RRZERLR
MERMTAREFHIEIRL
B AEEAMATZEEA
B T A L & PRAR S0 3G
ERARTHRAREE - I IFRE
EREHN NS IEA AL
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H R EFH REE505E 2
(2009 : 5o§5> KHMRE
SRS - AAEE
aizo o¢12ﬂ315¢¢r§f
B A& e gm0
134,000/ 7T (2009 = #E0,/
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(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to other price risk
through its investments in listed debt securities
outside Hong Kong. In addition, the Group has
closely monitored the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective listed debt
instruments had been 5% higher/lower:

. investments revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by HKD312,000 (2009:
increase/decrease by HKD2,077,000) for
the Group as a result of the changes in
fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

The Group's sensitivity to available-for-sale
investments has not changed significantly from
the prior year.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2010, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the amount of
contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee
issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 29.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual tfrade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, Directors consider that the Group's credit risk
is significantly reduced.

At 31 December 2010, the credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had concentration
of credit risk in relation to bank balances as 88% (2009:
90%) of balances are placed with five banks (2009:
five banks).

The Group also had concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables as 35% (2009: 22%) and
83% (2009: 88%) of the Group's total frade receivables
were due from its largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within the footwear
manufacturing segment. The credit risk in relation to
these receivables is limited because they are
footwear traders with well established brand names
and market positioning and extensive geographical
spread.

The Group also had concentration of credit risk in
relation to the advance to a jointly controlled entity
and loan to another jointly controlled entity. The
credit risk in relation to these advance and loan is
limited because they are in fair financial positions with
well established brand names.
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A MR

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the operations of the Group and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities according to the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest fime band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing
to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

2010

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due fo jointly contfrolled

entities

Secured bank loans - variable

interest-rate

Financial guarantee contract

2009

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to jointly controlled

entities

Financial guarantee confract

2010

FiiEemas
BHRAMENTE
et A REHERTE

BREAENR-
FOTE
HBRRAR

2009

FiTEERER

B REMENTE
e AREHEEIR

HBRRAR

Weighted
average
interest rate

Filks
mEFHE
%

1.36

Weighted
average
interest rate

ks
nETHE
%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ISR M EE

() ERAMRETERERIEE @

REBES @R (&)

B E £ R FE R

On demand Total Carrying
or undiscounted amount

less than 1-3 cash at

1 month months flows  31.12.2010
i

REAAR REE 31122010
SRIEA 13 BEeRLE REE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THR THR THET THET
212,041 126,849 338,890 338,890
12,577 - 12,577 12,577
80,000 - 80,000 80,000
50,000 - 50,000 -
354,618 126,849 481,467 431,467
On demand Total Carrying
or undiscounted amount

less than 1-3 cash at

1 month months flows  31.12.2009
REAAT AEE 31122010
P1EA 13878 ReneH FEE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FEL FEL FET FET
106,502 83,984 190,486 190,486
17,650 - 17,650 17,650
38,000 - 38,000 -
162,152 83,984 246,136 208,136
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A MR

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
December 2010, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HKD60,000,000. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. Directors believe that such bank loans
will be repaid three to five years after the end of the
reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At
that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows will amount to HKDé2,774,400.

The amount included above for financial guarantee
contract is the maximum amount the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no
amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices; and

. the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices from observable current market
fransactions.

Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, all grouped into Level 1
based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable. Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets.
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A MR

(C) FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Held-for-trading investments

Available-for-sale financial assets

Listed equity securities
Listed debentures

Total

ERBEBRRATEEE

NEMEE
FEEEIRE
AHEETREE
LEHRARES
EMER

nE

As at 31 December 2010, the Group issued financial
guarantee to a bank in respect of banking facilities granted
fo a jointly controlled entity. The aggregate amount that
could be required to be paid if the guarantee was called
upon in entirety amounted tfo HKD50,000,000 (2009:
HKD38,000,000), of which, HKD38,500,000 (2009: Nil) has
been utilised by the jointly confrolled entity during the year.

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group made the following minimum lease payments

during the year as follows:

Operating lease rentals in respect of:

Minimum lease payments:
- plants
— retail shops
Contingent rentals

UTEAMEERERS

G R
— B
—TEE

%A
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2010 2009

HKD’000 HKD'000

FTET FHEIT

- 321

- 1

6,246 41,530

6,246 41,852
R2010F12831H - AEEA— LR

ERNRITRBMA—RITHATBER -
ERURER MEIXNNESER
50,000,000/ 7t (2009 : 38,000,000%
) RHARZEHERERFAPAES

38,500,000/% 7T (2009 : &) o

REBFREEA

AEBRFAEHUTHER

ER0A

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET THET
21,709 33,734
8,528 3,027
7,465 10,032
37,702 46,793
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THE GROUP AS LESSEE (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments for plants
and retail shops under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

B ISR M EE

TEBAREEA ()

RARREHR » AEBAENBERST
ATHUHMEETHENRRE R T ERH#HA AR
REEEHE - EAHPEHHTAT

2010 2009

HKD’000 HKD'000

FERT FAET

Within one year —F R 21,097 24,732
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEENTF (BIEEEMT) 15,883 30,578
36,980 55,310

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for certain of its plants and retail shops. Leases are
negotiated for lease terms of one to five years.

The above lease commitments represent basic rents only
and do not include contingent rents payable in respect of
certain retail shops leased by the Group. In general, these
contingent rents are calculated with reference to the
relevant retail shops’ turnover using pre-determined
formulae. It is not possible to estimate in advance the
amount of such confingent rent payable.

THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Property rental income earned during the year was
HKD6,824,000 (2009: HKD6,199,000). All of the Group's
investment properties are held for rental purposes. The
investment properties held for rental purposes have
committed tenants for the next two years.

EERERE RSB TRER
TEHBOAS - AOEBETA—EAF
T o

D HEAEEREAES - EIREAE
ERENE TEERRNENRAESE - —
s ZEIRNEE 2 EHETERH
HEXBERBLBEENEAFE - Fhfh
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FR - FEYE B EKRALR6,824,000/E
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A MR

THE GROUP AS LESSOR (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:

FEBAHBEA B

RARREHR - AEERE PRI AR K&K
HEFRBEHNAT

2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHEIT
Within one year —F R 4,437 5,899
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEENTF (BIEEEMT) 2,179 6,496
6,616 12,395
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the EERGZREMBHRE S
acquisition of property, plant and REMHKENE  BE
equipment and construction of BB ERE Y
investment properties contracted for BRI R R ARG
but not provided in the consolidated MEHZERRX
financial statements 17,327 1,880
Capital expenditure in respect of the BB RET L
construction of investment properties BRI E Y EEE
and acquisition of a piece of land MG — Rt E AR
authorised but not contracted for 421,595 252,041

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
frustees. The Group conftributes 5% or HKD 1,000 in maximum
of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
conftribution is matched by employees.
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The subsidiaries of the Company in PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the government of PRC. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage
of the salaries of the relevant subsidiaries’ employees, are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period to which they relate and represent
the amount of contributions payable by these subsidiaries
to the scheme.

The Group also participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant local
government authorities in other jurisdictions where the
Group operates. Certain employees of the Group eligible
for participating in the retirement schemes are entitled to
retirement benefits from the schemes. The Group is required
to make conftributions to the retirement schemes up to time
of retirement of the eligible employees, excluding those
employees who resigned before their retirements, at a
percentage that is specified by the local governments.

(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with its jointly controlled entities:

Nature =

Sales HE
Sourcing income FHE WA
Interest income FEWA
Management fee income EBEBEPA
Royalty fee charge RS

B ISR M EE

AR RRAF BB AR R EBRFEEH
BRERRKBMEABIKE o IR B
RIREEMNB AR EENTENETED
LEEt 8 - WA BRI S E A R
MRS HERFAGEZEERE -

REE T2 BN E B S RTER E A BLERE
& #OAERE R AT BRPI A SRE R FURIRET & » AR
SEFAERZMERASNEEERES
ZER BIHRINGER] o AR EARE BT
RENE D LR MR FRAFTEELH
HEEREREERAKRL - TRENEKA
BHEMERESR -

(A) BEALXS

PaS-3

2010 2009

HKD’000 HKD’000
FERT FAT

- 21,376

- 491

6,459 5,230

- 177
(329) (590)
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A MR

(B)

(©)

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of Directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

R HIRR A
I RARERN

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

On 23 January 2009, Mr. Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald
tendered his resignation as chairman and executive
director. During the year ended 31 December 2009,
the Board, at its discretion, resolved to make a
payment of HKD 12,800,000 at its own discretion.

The remuneration of the Directors and key executives
is determined by the Board having regard to the
performance of the individuals and market trends.

DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTEREST OF A SUBSIDIARY TO
A GROUP’S JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
disposed of 50% equity interest in Rivergold
International Limited (“Rivergold”) to a Group's 50%
owned jointly controlled entity, JFT, at a cash
consideration of HKD47,000,000. Amongst which,
there was consensus that the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies in
Rivergold. Subsequent to disposal, the Group was
effectively interested in 75% shareholding of
Rivergold. Accordingly, Rivergold is accounted for as
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Rivergold indirectly held a wholly-owned subsidiary
which was engaged in properties investment in the
PRC.
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TEEEASRHN

FREERHMTBERABN
Ban T :

2010 2009
HKD’'000 HKD'000
FHET THET
19,865 30,252
736 591
20,601 30,843

200941 A23H - FEIBSEE 2B
THEEMITES - BE2009512H
JALFE  BEZGWBHREETE
A BFHER R E 212,800,000/ 7T °

BEENTEERABNFH IHES
mERRBERTIHBEMEE

HEXREEARZHERBOES

HZE2010F12A31HIEFE » A&
B IR ¢ 847,000,000/ © &
Rivergold International Limited
(TRivergold]) #)50%/% A # &= T fif
R - BRI AR EBE50% %
MR EFIEGIERE - 24 - K%
E A #EEERivergold iy B 75 I 48 &
Ko oBEZEE  AEERFSA
Rivergold®75%%8 Mtk o ALt
RivergoldAZR R RIIER2 B A B
NEINER ° Rivergoldf§E#HH —2
EMENBAR  HEZHEFENYSE
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The following is the summarised statement of financial

position of the Company as at 31 December 2010:

Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables
Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves (Note)
Note:
Reserves
At 1 January 2009 M2009F1A1H
Profit for the year FERER
Dividend paid BERRE
Lapse of share options KRR
At 31 December 2009 #2009 12A31H
Profit for the year FERH
Dividend paid BERE
At 31 December 2010 2010128318

RATFR2010612 7431 BB I MR KB

BT
2010 2009
HKD’000 HKD'000
FTHET FET
HERKE AR 988 988
= NGIE S 1,105,760 1,265,134
H{h & U B 3R 477 251
RITHEBREIES 115,885 203,986
1,223,110 1,470,359
KB A A 269,302 515,834
H A i BR 3K 657 521
269,959 516,355
953,151 954,004
AR A K 1% 1
A 436,011 436,011
i () 517,140 517,993
953,151 954,004
E :
4]
Share
Share Contributed options Retained
premium surplus reserve profits Total
R 45 8 BEREG BRERE el X
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FTHET FHET FHET FHET TR
364,638 63,561 14,137 70,598 512,934
- - - 22,499 22,499
- - - (17.440) (17,440)
- - (14,137) 14,137 -
364,638 63,561 - 89,794 517,993
- - - 21,820 21,820
- - - (22,673) (22,673)
364,638 63,561 - 88,941 517,140
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The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the acquired
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s
Shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the group
reorganisation on 9 February 1995.

The following are the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF INTERESTS IN JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ADVANCE TO JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Determining whether the interests in jointly controlled
entities and advance to jointly controlled entities is
impaired requires an estimation of the share of present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the investees and the proceeds on ultimate
disposal of the investments, and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. No impairment loss had been
recognised in 2009 and 2010 as the recoverable amounts
exceed the carrying amount of the interests in jointly
controlled entities and advance to jointly controlled
entities. As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of
interests in jointly controlled entities and advance to jointly
controlled entities is HKD91,217,000 (2009: HKDS56,778,000)
and HKD171,388,000 (2009: HKD171,110,000) respectively.

FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At the end of each reporting period, the Group's
investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation carried out by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on
market value basis which takes into account certain
estimates, such as comparable market tfransactions. The
management has reviewed the valuation and is satisfied
that the valuation of the Group's investment properties is
reasonable.
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RRBEBEBRERTY AR E 2 Bk
MEAFEE  BRERI99SF2A9EEHE
REEMAR - N2 FEUIEZME A B
TR 2 EE -

BB T BRER R AR E RO AET
RERKNEMEZRR OF RGN EM
BEENEEN B ENREELDRAEDE
EERER) SEwMT

HEZGHERRBRTHEZHEBAOMG
sHRE

HEE KRS B R R B R T KRG e
RRERS HEBRMAFERRELRRK
PRES 2R R M HA R EZIREN W -
REA NIRRT EERE - MERARRS
EREBONEH  AREELERNREL
18 o AR E e E A R B g R ER
FHEZEGEROKREE - BR2009F K&
20105 I MEHE R R E RSB © 7020106124
318 - ARESER RN T HFZEHE
EERERMEE 2 5 /291,217,0007% 7T (2009 :
56,778,000 7T) & 171,388,000 7T
(2009 : 171,110,000%7T) °

REMENAFEE

REEHRESHARE - REBNREMERE
T HEGBEMRATFEEETER - £
RFEER - HEMRETISEERERIL
EEINETHE  WALRTIERS - B2
EBOPEZGE  ITRA/TEENRENE
HEZAIEN -



(a)

(b)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

On 20 January 2011, the Group was successful in
bidding for two parcels of land located at North
Puheda Road, Daoyi Development Zone, Shenyang,
PRC at an aggregated premium of RMB167,554,000
(approximately HKD197,587,000). RMB33,517,000
(approximately HKD39,525,000) was paid on 28
December 2010 as deposit for the bidding, the
balance of RMB134,037,000 (approximately
HKD158,062,000) will be paid on or before 20 April
2011. Details of The transaction were set out in the
relevant circular of the Company issued on
11 February 2011.

In January 2011, the Group further injected
USD19,186,000 (approximately HKD149,077,000) into
Rivergold and in return, the Group's shareholding in
Rivergold, held indirectly through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, increased from 50% to 80%. Subsequent
to the capital injection, the Group transferred its
entire interest of 80% of total issued share capital in
Rivergold to a newly acquired wholly-owned
subsidiary, Premier Ever.

On 23 February 2011, the Group has entered into a
joint venture agreement with MEC, for the
development and operation of the Group's
investment properties under construction in
Shenyang. Under the agreement, the Group has
transferred 9,593,100 shares in Premier Ever to MEC
for a return of USD equivalent of RMB79,619,400.
Immediately after the transaction, the Group and
MEC held 62.5% and 37.5% shareholdings in Premier
Ever respectively and Premier Ever holds 80% of the
total issued share capital of Rivergold. Details of the
transaction were set out in the relevant circular of
the Company issued on 17 March 2011.

(a)

(c)

B ISR M EE

201141 4208 - REE AR (E
ARM¥167,554,000m (&
197,587,000/ 7T.) B0 {5 Az i
Y[ B 2 B R SHIM AE L Al EY R
i B ARY33,517,0007T
(#739,525,0007% 7T) 2 720104 12
A28AXAMERZERED - MR
AR #134,037,000 (#)158,062,000
EIT) 20115643208 sk 2 AT
- ZXHNFBEEHNAEER
20114F2 AT BT 2 BB -

B2011F1R - REEEIINM
Rivergoldix A& 719,186,000% 7T
(#9149,077,0007T) + ZEEHFH
Rivergold ' B —2EHEWEA
BB 1 AR 4E B 50%1% = 80% °
EREFIANEANE  AEBBER
Rivergold®)80% % & &, 8 17 Jk A 82
RE—HMBBENZEBRENEQR
Premier Ever °

R2011F2823H » AEEE=Z1
FTEa] & & UWBERCERE
B ESEEPOIREYE - RIR
ik » NEED S Premier Everf
9,593,1000% fH 5 s B2 = ZEh T - LA
BEEEARET79,619,4007THIETT
RIE - BEZRS  AEER=ZFH
F 5> B4 B Premier Everfy62.5% &
37.5% % 3% + MPremier Everfll
FFBRivergoldFT B B BT AR
80%MEm - ZXFHHFHIBEHN AL
BR2011E3/8178 %72 ABR
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Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 20104 & 2009F 128318 * ARFAE

31 December 2010 and 2009 are as follows: ZEWBARBENOT
Place of Paid up Effective
incorporation/ issued/ interest in issued/
registration registered registered capital held
and operation share capital by the Company
gAY/ BHE KRAREN
Subsidiary BER BOR BRT/BR Principal activifies
WEAE Rews BRERE RARN#ER TEED
2010 2009
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
%4 k3 Bk fi%k
Canray Int'l Limited Brifish Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Footwear frading
ABRLES LRRIET BERES
Cashmaster Profits Limited Brifish Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Footwear frading
ABRLES LRRIET BERES
Chi Yuen Developments British Virgin Islands/PRC ~ Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Footwear
Limited KBRES/TE LRRIET manufacturing
ERERBRAA BERERE
Cosmo Group Holdings Brifish Virgin Islands Ordinary 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Limited Usb10,000 RERMR
ABRLES Ei@Mk10,000% T
Continuance Enterprises Brifish Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited EERAES LRRIET REER
Guangzhou Panyu Xingtaly ~ PRC Registered capital - 92.78% - 92.78%  Footwear
Footwear Industry & (Co-operative RMB68,260,876 manufacturing
Commerce Co. Lid. joint venture) BUE-V: BERESE
ENERRZEEARAT  PH(RERE) AR68,260.8767
Fuqing Grand Galatica PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Footwear
REEA (Wholly owned USD700,000 manufacturing
foreign entferprise) & A700,000% T BERESE
PEOMEEALS)

Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report
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Subsidiary
WEAR

Holey Trading Limited
HEEHERAF

Liang Shing Industries

Limited
REEZERAA

Liang Shing Industries
(HK) Limited

REEZ(FR)ERAA

Lucky Port Trading
Limited

Misto Worldwide Limited

Power Plus Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
EREL/
BER
Bens

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

£k

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
ik

Brifish Virgin Islands

RERAEE

Brifish Virgin Islands
RERRES

Paid up
issued/
registered
share capital
BHRE
BiTR
BRERAE

Ordinary HKD2
LakoAT

Ordinary HKD72,000
LiERE72,000% T
Non-vofing
deferred (Note 1)
HKDT1,428,000
RARFENELR
(3#—)1,428,000%

Ordinary
HKD10,000
L4EM%10,000% T

Ordinary USD2
Ll VES
Ordinary USD1
LRRIET

Ordinary USD1
LRRIET

Directly
%4 GF Bk s

Effective
interest in issued/
registered capital held

by the Company
FRARED
BRT/ER
RABHER

2010 2009

Indirectly Directly  Indirectly

- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%

Principal activities

IEED

Footwear frading
BEEES

Provision of
management
services

REEBRYE

Footwear marketing
and frading
BEEEERES

Footwear marketing
and frading
BEREEERES

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

FEEEBRAT 2010 BFHE



Subsidiary
WERR

Rivergold International
Limited

ERANRERIE
REARLA

Stateway Enterprises Limited

ARCFERAE

Symphony Resources
Limited
MEERERAA

Takson Asia Limited
GHERAT

Zenith Billion Trading Limited

BERSERAF

Zhongshan Jingmei

LS

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
HREKL/
BER
Rews

Brifish Virgin Islands
ABRLES

PRC
PE

Brifish Virgin Islands
RBRRAE

Hong Kong
&k

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
&R

PRC
(Wholly owned
foreign enterprise)
PEOMEBELS)

Paid up
issued/
registered
share capital
BHE
BiTR
BRERE

Ordinary USD12,790,800
[Note 2

LiEM%12,790,000% T
(#=)

Registered capital
USD18,000,000
4 7718,000,000% T

Ordinary USD1
LRRIET

Ordinary HKD2
LRR2ET

Ordinary HKD10,000
L4ER%10,000% T

Ordinary HKD2
LRR2ET

Registered capital
USD21,500,000

HEMER
21,500,000% 70
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2010
Directly

Effective
interest in issued/
registered capital held
by the Company
KRAKED
BEfT/ER
RAFN#EER

Indirectly Directly
GF Bk

75% -

75% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

2009

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

Indirectly
%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities
TEED

Investment holding

RARK

Property
development

VESIE

Footwear Trading
EREE%

Trading of footwear,
apparel,
swimming wear
and accessories

BE - RE K
REREHES

Footwear purchasing
ERRE

Footwear frading
EREZ%

Footwear
manufacturing
BERERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Directly

(CONTINUED)

Place of Paid up
incorporation/ issued/
registration registered
and operation share capital
B hYe BHRE

Subsidiary BER BOR

WEAR LEpy BRERA

Zhongshan Huali PRC Registered capital

ITE] (Wholly owned USD2,500,000

foreign entferprise) FHEX
EMEBERE) 2,500,000 T
Stateway Vietnam Vietnam Registered capital
g () (Wholly owned VND119,989,391,000
foreign entferprise) FHEX
BEONEBALE) 119,989,391,000%: 7 &
Continuance Vietnam Vietnam Registered capital
B3R [Wholly owned VND151,114,250,000
foreign entferprise) HHEX
BEOMNEBEALR) 151,114,250,0008E &
HERERHERAA PRC Registered capital
(Wholly owned RMB35,728,529
foreign enterprise) HREX
hEOEBERR) AR#35,728,529C

Notes:

1. The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled
to vote, are not entitled to any dividend and are, on a
winding-up, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the
Company, to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HKD100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders
of the ordinary shares of the Company.

2. The Group holds 50% equity interest indirectly through a

wholly-owned subsidiary and the remaining 25% effective
interest was held by the Group through a jointly controlled
entity. The Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of Rivergold and its subsidiaries.
Accordingly, Rivergold and its principal subsidiary &5 845
KETEHERIE AR A A (Shenyang Ao Te Lai Si Enterprise
Company Limited) were accounted for as non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company.

B ISR M EE

37. TEMBARER (8)

Effective

interest in issued/
registered capital held

by the Company
RRRREH
BET/ER Principal activifies
RABHER TEREY
2009
Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
GF:3 ER i
100% - 100%  Footwear
manufacturing
BEREHE
100% - 100%  Footwear
manufacturing
BRERE
100% - 100% Footwear
manufacturing
BEREYE
100% - 100%  Trading, retailing
and distribution
of apparel,

swimming wear
and accessories

% - KRR R
EHE5 58
R

1. BEREFEOELEES A ALEN TRERE
7 D TEEFEEAREIRE - WRER
¥ - RA[7EE A2 #100,000,000,000,000
BLTARBNEBRITEAR  HRE
DEARBOFBERE -

2. AEBBB - 2EREMBRRMERE
50%R%HE - HEr25% 8 M i AlAE i AN S
EHEFZHIEERERE - ASEAREE
ERivergold & E [} B A &) 89 81 75 M 48
B% o FE It - Rivergold & 2 X ZHfE A
AUBIS R R EREARAR - U
KARFEEHREMB AR -

MEEEARRXT 2010 BFHE 1 27
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. FEMBLARER (E)

(CONTINUED)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt security at RARE BRI FEEEREA - BEEN
the end of the year or at any time during the year. BRREBITEBKRY -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company EERA  UERIINEARTHBREIAE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected EYEREEEEREAENRR - EERA
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other iRt M B AR AEN S SR E
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in NEERBLBRITEK °

particulars of excessive length.
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Financial Summary

MBERE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31ALEE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHET FHET FHEIT FHET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (E31) (E51) (&E51)
RESULTS E
Revenue EERE 1,947,473 1,784,907 2,050,584 1,849,207 1,861,604
Profit (loss) before tax R 54 AT 22 7
(E518) 126,366 28,528 (232,762) 115,255 221,303
Taxation g (38,770) (10,785) 1,554 (18,216) (7.444)
Profit (loss) for the year FEm N (BR) 87,596 17,743 (231,208) 97,039 213,859
Profit (loss) attributable to: FE{E Y% H (EE) :
Owners of the Company  RNAREHEAE A 87,861 17,963 (228,025) 93,932 206,418
Non-controlling interests  JE# Rk (265) (220) (3,183) 3,107 7,441
87,596 17,743 (231,208) 97,039 213,859
As at 31 December
M12831H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHET FHET FHEIT FHET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (E31) (&%) (&E51)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets 2,186,623 1,802,940 1,830,578 2,118,105 2,063,028
Total liabilities (676,641) (420,705) (494,302) (511,241) (511,375)
1,509,982 1,382,235 1,336,276 1,606,864 1,551,653
Equity attributable to RRARERBA
owners of the Company 1,408,230 1,349,615 1,303,445 1,571,494 1,513,942
Non-controlling interests 101,752 32,620 32,831 35,370 37,711
1,509,982 1,382,235 1,336,276 1,606,864 1,551,653

Figures in prior periods have been restated to reflect the
application of “Amendments to HKAS 17 — Leases” as described

in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

R MR 2/ At

EN R ER(E B ERFE 175 - HEWE
A BEHRNBECES  TERGEEHT

FEEEBRAT 2010 BFHE



Particulars of Major Properties

Location

i B4

Unit Nos. 6 to 10,
portions of Unit Nos. 1 and 5
on the 10/F of
Island Place Tower,
No. 510 King's Road,
North Point,
Hong Kong

Unit 16-3, Lane 73,
Rau Ping Road,
Tsyh Torng,

Yun Lin Hsien,
Taiwan, R.O.C.

Land and factory complex
at Zhangjiabian Village,
Huoju Development Zone,
Zhangshan City, Guangdong
Province, the People’s
Republic of China

B
it A
HEB510%
BEXREI0E
1 E 5575019 B s
F 6% 1057 B A7

P RE A
TS
#1748
BT 5
7351623

PEARKME
ERAH LT
NIERFTE R
R
T RERE
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Lease
term
HEH

Medium

3

Long
R H

Medium

]

Gross floor
area
HEEEER
(sqg.ft.)
(FAR)

14,090

43,446

2,019,511

Effective

held

Use BREE
A [z
Commercial 100%

[GES

Industrial land  100%
T%

Factory and 100%
Staff quarters
ImEkEIRES



Location

i 34

Unit Nos. 1 to 10 on the
3/F of Island Place Tower,
No. 510 King's Road,
North Point,
Hong Kong

Unit Nos. 2 to 4,
portions of Unit Nos. 1 and 5
on the 10/F of
Island Place Tower,
No. 510 King's Road,
North Point,
Hong Kong

Flat E on 8/F,
One Island Place,
No. 51 Tanner Road,
North Point,
Hong Kong

Flat G on 18/F,
One Island Place,
No. 51 Tanner Road,
North Point,
Hong Kong

Flat E on 11/F,
Two Island Place,
No. 55 Tanner Road,
North Point,
Hong Kong

Particulars of Major Properties

Lease
term
HEH
BB Medium
Bl o HA
HEES5105%
BEAXEIME
121057 &AL
BB Medium
Bl o HA
HEES5105%
BEXEI0E
2B AN E L R
1 ZE 555 5B 10 B AL
A Medium
bl A
FEES15
B B
8IEERE
A Medium
bl  Bf
FEES15
B B
18 G=E
A Medium
bl  Bf
F2E55%
B 2R
1EEE

Effective
Gross floor held
area Use BREE
HEEEmE RR [
(sqg.ft.)
(FAHR)
20,090 Commercial 100%
[EES
6,000 Commercial 100%
[EES
975 Residential 100%
F=
1,013 Residential 100%
F=
975 Residential 100%
F=

FEEEBRAT 2010 BFHE



Particulars of Major Properties

Lease
Name/location term
£ 2 HEH
Flat D, 8/F, A Medium
Three Island Place, it A H HA
No. 61 Tanner Road, HA2E615
North Point, VS IE I 3
Hong Kong 8IEDE
Portion B on 5/F, EENE Medium
No. 32 Hung To Road, BiE H HR
Kwun Tong, 5 Bl 18 3255
Kowloon SHEBHR
Unit C, 2/F, BB Long
Hop Ming Factory Building, E RE
No. 8 On Yip Street, et
Chai Wan, AHEIBAE
Hong Kong 2 CENL
Unit 3, Flat 113 to 114, REARLNMHESS Medium
123 to 124, No. 21-1, V& 55 T VBT [ SCEBK A
Wenyi Road Shenhe District, 21-15%—E1-1-3»
Shenyang 1-1-4% —[E1-2-3 »
PRC 1-2-AF B
Lot No. Shenbei 2008-050 REARLNMHESS Medium
North Puheda Road BT o EA

Hushi Tai Development Zone, RARERRE
Shenyang, Liaoning Province,  3&a K&t
PRC $% 4t 2008-0505%

Lots No. Shenbei (G) 2008-017 i AR#MEEEE  Medium
North Puheda Road, ERG T o EA
Hushi Tai Development Zone, RAREERR
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, &)@ K&t
PRC &4t (G) 2008-0175%

Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report

Gross floor
area
HEEER
(sqg.ft.)
(FAR)

597

4,462

4,864

11,214

100,146
(site area
(sq.m))
(3R E 1R
(FHXK))

45,166
(site area
(sq.m))
(3R E AR
(FHXK))

Use
AR

Residenfial
x=

Industrial
T%

Industrial

I

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES

Industrial

I

Effective

held

BREE

b2

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



Information to Stakeholders

SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Details of the annual general meeting are set out in the Nofice
of Annual General Meeting fo be sent to Shareholders together
with a proxy form.

Date: Friday, 10 June 2011
Time: 92:30 a.m.
Venue: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North

Poinf, Hong Kong
DIVIDEND

Final dividend:
Book close period:

HKDO0.015 per ordinary Share
Thursday, 9 June 2011 fo
Friday, 10 June 2011.

Payment date: On or about Monday, 4 July 2011.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certfificates must be
lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at the 26th Floor of Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4.30 p.m. on Wednesday, 8 June 2011.

ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report containing financial statements and notes to
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010
is published on the following websites:

Symphony: www.symphonyholdings.com

Exchange: www.hkex.com.hk.

REGISTERED OFFICE

Address:  Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Address:  10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North

Point, Hong Kong
Email: info@symphonyholdings.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

The Bank of Bermuda Limited
6 Front Street
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Name:
Address:

Name:
Address:

Tricor Tengis Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone:(852) 29801333

Facsimile: (852) 28108185

MmEHBEER

BRRKE

BREAFAGEAHABERNRREZERBTET
BRWBERBAFAGBEA -

HH 2011F6R10REHE

iy f L9309

o HEILAREBS105BEKRE 102

iz 2

HRBE. FEBAROC.015E T

TEBPER - 2011F6AHERIE
20116 R10H 281
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In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the
following expressions have the following meanings:

“2001 Scheme”

"Associate(s)”

“Board”

“Bye-laws”

“CG Code”

“Model Code”

“"Company”

“"Continuance Vietham”

“Director(s)”

“"Exchange”

“Frensham”

"Fuging Grand Galatica”

“Group”

the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 22 October
2001

has the meaning ascribed to it
under the Listing Rules

the board of Directors of the
Company

the existing Bye-laws of the
Company

the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers

Symphony Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board
of the Exchange

Continuance Vietnam Footwear
Co. Ltd, a company incorporated
in Vietham

the director(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Frensham Investments Limited,
which directly interested in 4.82%
shareholding of the Company

Fuqing Grand Galatica Footwear
Co.ltd. ®BERAKREXEBR AR

the Company and its subsidiaries
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“HKD"

“HKICPA"

“HKFRSs”

"Hong Kong”

“INED(s)"

“RD"

“Listing Rules”

“MEC™

“PRC” or "China”

“Premier Ever”

“Prudential”

“RMB"

“SEO"

“Share(s)”

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company

Inland Revenue Department

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Exchange

Mitsubishi Estates Co., Ltd., a
kabushiki kaisha incorporated in
Japan

the People's Republic of China

Premier Ever Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability

Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong)
Limited, an independent firm of
professional property valuer,
Chartered Surveyor

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the
PRC

the Securities and Futures Ordinance

ordinary share(s) of HKD0.25 each in
the share capital of the Company
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“Shareholders”

“Stateway Vietnam”
“Well Success”

“Yue Yuen”
“Zhongshan Jingmei”

“Zhongshan Huali”

registered holder(s) of Share(s)

Stateway Vietnam Footwear Co.
Ltd, a company incorporated in
Vietham

Well Success Investment Limited, is
directly interested in 48.83%
Shareholding of the Company

Yue Yuen Industial (Holdings)
Limited, of which its shares are listed
on the Exchange (HKSE: 00551)

Zhongshan Jingmei Footwear
Industry & Commerce Co Limited /1

LR EEBRAA

Zhongshan Huali Footwear Industry
& Commerce Co Ltd. A 1L ZEF| 3
BRAT

Symphony Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report

MR

185

[Well Success]

[+ 7tl

eSS

[ L ZE 5]

Mty BREFEA A
BEAREEERARF
Ny AEZ) 3 AvA: NN

Well Success Investment
Limited * EEEFEAAR
A)48.8% M I 5 =

WMTITE(RE)ERR
A AR B L
(B tn (5% 00551)

FILBEREXARAR

RIIERNPERRAT



BRANDS
RETAIL

OUTLET MALL

SYMPHONY

WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW



	Cover
	Contents
	Chairman's Statement
	Operation Review
	Board of Directors
	Directors' Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor's Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Particulars of Major Properties
	Information to Stakeholders
	Glossary
	Back Cover

